COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

Between

CICT, GLOBAL CALGARY, a division of Corus Entertainment; CITV, GLOBAL EDMONTON, a division of Corus Entertainment; CISA, GLOBAL LETHBRIDGE, a division of Corus Entertainment



And



May 1, 2022

To

April 30, 2025

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1	
Intent 1	
ARTICLE 2	<i>'</i>
Definition of Bargaining Unit	<i>'</i>
ARTICLE 3	
Employee	
' '	
ARTICLE 4	2
Employee Categories	2
ARTICLE 5	6
Job Functions	
ARTICLE 6	
Professional Activities	8
ARTICLE 7	(
Management Rights	
ARTICLE 8	
No Strike Breaking	10
ARTICLE 9	10
Union Membership	
ADTIQUE 40	4.
ARTICLE 10Rejection of Membership	
Rejection of Membership	10
ARTICLE 11	10
Union Dues	10
ARTICLE 12	1.
Non-Discrimination	
ARTICLE 13	
Notification	12
ARTICLE 14	13
Leave for Union Activities	
ARTICLE 15	
Union Access to Premises	13
ARTICLE 16	13

No Strike Clause	13
ARTICLE 17	13
Union Use of Bulletin Boards	
ARTIOLE 40	
ARTICLE 18 Company Seniority.	
Company Semonty	14
ARTICLE 19	
Interruption of Service	14
Article 20.	14
Promotions & Transfers	
ARTICLE 21	
Upgrading	15
ARTICLE 22	16
Dismissals & Resignations	16
ARTICLE 23	17
Lay-Offs	
,	
ARTICLE 24	
Re-Engagement & Recall	18
ARTICLE 25	19
Performance Reports	
ARTICLE 26	20
Duties and Responsibilities	
·	
ARTICLE 27	
Technological Change	21
ARTICLE 28	22
Grievance Procedure	22
ARTICLE 29	22
Rates of Pay	
•	
ARTICLE 30	
General Wage Provisions	29
ARTICLE 31	30
Senior Designation	30
ARTICLE 32	20
Work Week	
	02

ARTICLE 33	
Tour of Duty	32
ARTICLE 34	32
Excessive Hours and Safety	
,	
ARTICLE 35	
Posting of Schedules	33
ARTICLE 36	34
Change of Starting Time	
ARTICLE 37	
Lateness	34
ARTICLE 38	35
Days Off	
ARTICLE 39	
Work On a Day Off	36
ARTICLE 40	37
Meal Periods	37
ARTICLE 41	
Break Periods	30
ARTICLE 42	39
Overtime	39
ADTIQUE 40	4.0
ARTICLE 43 Call-Back	
Call-Dack	40
ARTICLE 44	41
Turn-Around Period	41
ARTICLE 45	40
Night Differential	
Night Dinerential	42
ARTICLE 46	42
Expenses and Automobiles	42
ARTICLE 47	45
Travel Conditions	
ARTICLE 48	
Location Definition and Expenses	44
ARTICLE 49	45
ANTIOLE 73	40

vacations	40
ARTICLE 50 Legal Holiday and Payment	
ARTICLE 51 Scheduling of Christmas and New Year's Holidays	48
ARTICLE 52	
ARTICLE 53 Health and Welfare Plans	
ARTICLE 54 Pension	
ARTICLE 55 Compassionate Leave	
ARTICLE 56 Jury Duty	
ARTICLE 57 Education, Seminars, Etc.	
ARTICLE 58Classification Changes	
ARTICLE 59	
ARTICLE 60	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #1	59
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #2	60
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #3ANCHOR/REPORTERS	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #4	62
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #5	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #6PENSION PLAN SYNOPSIS CITV	

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #7	66
Digital Journalist	66
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #8	
Training and Education	67
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #9	68
Additional Severance	68
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #10	69
Employees Grandfathered in Previous Group 9	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #11	70
Defined Contribution Pension Plan for New Hires	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #12	7
Global Calgary and Global Lethbridge Retiree Benefits	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #13	72
Lethbridge On-Call	
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #14	73
Diversity within Hiring and Promotions	
APPENDIX A - PERSONAL HARASSMENT	74



Intent

1.1 It is the purpose of this Agreement, in recognizing a common interest between the Company and the Union in promoting the utmost co-operation and friendly spirit between the Company and its employees to set forth conditions governing rates of pay, hours of work and conditions of employment to be observed between the parties and to provide a procedure for prompt and equitable adjustment of grievances. To this end, this Agreement is signed in good faith by the two parties.

ARTICLE 2

Definition of Bargaining Unit

- 2.1 The Company recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all persons employed in the unit defined by the Canada Labour Relations Board in its decision of October 22, 2010.
- 2.2 The Company will bargain collectively with the Union, as required by the Certification above referred to in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours and conditions of work for all employees as set out in 2.1.

ARTICLE 3

Employee

3.1 <u>Definition</u>

The term "employee" as used in this Agreement shall mean any person, employed in a classification included within the bargaining unit referred to in Article 2.1. It shall include any person employed in any job or classification created in the future which the parties by mutual consent decide to include within the bargaining unit; provided that where mutual consent is not reached, such failure shall not become a subject for grievance under this Agreement, but may be referred by either party to the Canada Labour Relations Board.

3.1.1 Wherever in the wording of the Agreement the masculine gender is used, it shall be understood to include the feminine gender, and wherever in the wording of the Agreement the feminine gender is used it shall be understood to include the masculine gender.

Employee Categories

- 4.1 All employees covered by this Agreement shall be considered full-time employees of the Company except as otherwise provided. These full-time employees shall be probationary employees for a period of six (6) months from the date of their employment with the Company. During the probation period the Company at its discretion may release the employee at any time, and such release may be subject to the grievance procedure up to but not including arbitration.
- 4.2 A part-time employee is defined as one hired on a regular basis to work less than thirty-five (35) hours per week. Such employee shall be paid on an hourly basis according with the hourly rate as described in the Wage Schedule and as assigned to their appropriate classification and rate. A part-time employee may work a standard work week when relieving a full-time employee.
 - Regular part-time employees shall be defined as those employees who work a minimum of 20 hours per week averaged over the previous twelve weeks.
- 4.2.1 Part-time employees shall be paid on the salary scale of the group to which they are assigned and progression shall occur at 1040 or 2080 (whichever is applicable) hours worked for those employees working 40 hours per week. This calculation shall include all hours worked including paid sick leave.
- 4.2.2 All articles of this Agreement shall apply to part-time employees except as hereinafter provided:
 - a) Article 18 Company Seniority; shall apply, however, seniority shall be calculated and accumulate according to all hours of work, including all hours on paid leave but excluding all hours worked prior to establishing part-time status. For example 174 hours equals one (1) month of seniority.
 - b) Article 23 Lay-Off; Lay-offs shall apply to regular part-time employees, however, in the event of a lay-off, affected employees shall receive four (4) weeks' notice, or four (4) weeks salary in lieu of notice. It is further agreed that regular part-time employees shall be entitled to severance pay on a pro-rated basis.
 - c) Article 24 Re-Engagement; shall apply to regular part-time employees, however, recall rights as set out in Article 24.3 shall not exceed six (6) months. In the event a regular part-time employee on lay-off works 20 or more hours per week (excluding sick leave) averaged over the previous 12 week period they shall be considered to have reverted to regular part-time status.
 - d) Article 33 Tour of Duty; shall not apply, however, the minimum scheduled tour of duty shall be four (4) hours. All hours worked in excess of the scheduled hours shall be paid at one and one-half the basic rate for all hours worked. There

shall be no assignment of split shifts except by mutual agreement between the employee, the Union, and the Company. Any extension of the posted tour may be refused with the exception of the most junior part-time employee on location at the time of the shift extension.

- e) Article 38 Days Off; Part-time employees working 24 scheduled hours or more per week shall have two (2) consecutive scheduled days off per week, designated by the Company. Days off may be changed, on a per occasion basis, without penalty, by mutual agreement between the Company and the employee with subsequent notice to the Union. Part-time employees are exempt from the minimum weekend off provisions.
- f) Article 50 Legal Holiday; shall not apply, however, part-time employees required to work on a statutory holiday shall be paid one and one-half (1½) times their regular rate for all hours worked with a minimum credit of four (4) hours and two times their basic rate for all hours worked over eight (8). In addition the employee will receive four percent (4%) of regular earnings over the previous thirty (30) calendar days.
- g) Article 52 Sick Leave; shall apply, however, regular part-time employees shall be entitled to accumulate one and one-quarter (11/4) days of paid sick leave for every one hundred and seventy-four (174) hours worked after establishing regular part-time status.
- Article 53 Health and Welfare; Regular part-time employees shall be entitled to Health and Welfare benefits as contained in this Agreement, excluding Long Term Disability in Calgary and Lethbridge only.
- 4.2.3 The provisions of Article 4.2 will not be used for the purpose of eliminating or replacing full-time employees or to avoid the re-call from lay-off of full-time employees or to avoid hiring full-time employees.
- **4.2.4** Part-time employees shall be probationary employees for a period of 1040 hours worked from the commencement of their employment within the job function.
- 4.2.5 A part-time employee may refuse additional work outside their regularly scheduled work assignment except as contemplated in Article 4.2.2 (d). However, part-time employees must submit in writing shifts that they are not available to work and shall update that information when any change occurs. Part-time employees, who are offered additional shifts with 48 hours notice on days where they have indicated their availability, and refuse such additional shifts three (3) times within a three month period, will forfeit their rights to be offered additional work for the next six months.
- 4.2.6 Subject to other provisions of this Agreement part-time employees shall be offered, on a seniority basis, all part-time (including relief) and/or temporary work for which they are qualified. Where such work would result in overtime and/or any other penalties (excluding night differential) then the Company may offer the work to the

next senior qualified part-time employee. If a qualified part-time employee is unavailable, then the Company may offer the work to a temporary employee.

4.3 A "temporary employee" is defined as one hired on a sporadic, occasional, as needed basis, not to exceed an average of thirty (30) days over any ten (10) consecutive weeks. Should a temporary employee exceed the foregoing they shall revert to part-time status.

Temporary employees shall be paid according to the wage schedule of the classification to which they are assigned.

Where a part-time employee cannot be found, as contemplated in Article 4.2.6, a temporary employee may exceed the foregoing time limits when hired to replace a full or part-time employee absent due to vacation, leaves of absence, (including sick leave) union business or training.

None of the Articles of this Collective Agreement shall apply to "temporary employees" except as hereinafter provided:

Article 35 – Posting of Schedules; Temporary employees shall have their proposed schedules posted (written in) at the time they are hired by the Company.

Article 38 – Days Off; Temporary employees working 24 hours or more per week shall have two (2) consecutive scheduled days off per week, designated by the Company, however they are exempt from the minimum weekend off provisions.

Article 39 - Work on Days Off.

Article 42 - Overtime.

Articles relating to sick leave, medical plans, pension plan, and vacation credit shall not apply.

Article 50 – Legal Holiday; shall not apply, however, temporary employees required to work on a statutory holiday shall be paid one and one half (1 ½) times their basic rate for all hours worked up to 8 hours and two (2) times their basic rate for all hours worked over eight (8) hours. In addition, temporary employees, working fifteen over the previous thirty days, shall receive statutory holiday pay calculated at 4% of regular earnings over the previous thirty (30) days.

- **4.3.1** Temporary employees will not be used to displace bargaining unit employees, or to avoid the recall from layoff of a bargaining unit employee.
- 4.3.2 Work on special projects, or productions shall be assigned to full-time or regular part-time employees, within the appropriate classification, before temporary employees are engaged.

- 4.4 Contractors may be engaged to perform specific on-air functions and in such event they shall be paid on a performance for fee basis.
- 4.4.1 Contract employees will not be used to eliminate, displace or to avoid the hiring of a bargaining unit employee.
- 4.4.2 The number of part-time, temporary and/or contract persons, excluding part-time or temporary employees hired for remote locations or to cover the absence of a regular employee, will not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the number in the Bargaining Unit. A waiver for occasional labour-intensive projects (such as telethons) will not be unreasonably withheld
- 4.5 Part-time, temporary employees and contract persons hired to perform bargaining unit functions will pay Union dues pursuant to Article 11 of this Agreement.
- 4.5.1 Students from a recognized educational institution shall not be considered employees as defined under this Agreement. Practicum students shall be allowed to perform unsupervised bargaining unit work for the duration of the practicum, which shall not exceed sixteen (16) weeks, after an initial training period of five working days. The Union shall not unreasonably deny requests for waivers where the educational institution requires a longer practicum. After these time limits are exhausted, practicum students shall be paid the appropriate rate for all hours performed.
- 4.5.2 It is understood that Article 4.5.1 has been agreed to so that students on practicum can get work experience without hindering the day to day operations of the station. They will not be used to displace bargaining unit employees as contemplated in Article 23.1.1.
- 4.6 The Company shall provide the Union, on a monthly basis, a report of the name, classification and hours worked by all employees in a part-time or temporary capacity.
- 4.7 When an aggregate number of part-time hours in any one job function exceeds forty (40) hours per week on a regular basis (max. six consecutive months) the company shall post a full-time position in that job function provided that the full-time position can eliminate the need for the part-time position(s). Further, when the number of hours worked by any part-time employee in one or more part-time job functions averages forty (40) hours or more on a regular basis, (max. six consecutive months) the part-time employee shall convert to full-time status. The calculation with respect to the foregoing shall exclude hours worked to cover for the absence of a full time employee on leave under this agreement.

Job Functions

- 5.1 The Company agrees it will not combine the job functions listed below for the express purpose of eliminating full-time jobs. Where a job has been combined with another job, an employee affected shall have the right to exercise his/her seniority rights and shall not suffer a reduction in salary as a result thereof.
- **5.1.1** Wherever the term "classification" is used in this Agreement it shall denote any of the following job functions.

1	Administrative Assistant
2	Anchor Producer
3	Art Director
4	Assignment Editor/Writer
5	Assistant Assignment Editor/Writer
6	Associate News Producer
7	Automated Control Room Director
8	Automated Control Room Technician
9	Broadcast Technologist
10	Commercial Writer/Producer
11	Community Relations Coordinator
12	Computer Graphics/Artist
13	Design Editor
14	Digital Journalist
15	EFP Camera/Audio
16	ENG Camera
17	ENG Camera/Editor
18	ENG Editor
19	Media Coordinator
20	News Assistant
21	News Promotion Writer/Producer
22	News Reporter

43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services		
25 On-Air Operator 26 Online Journalist 27 Online Video Producer 28 Post Production Editor 29 Producer/Director 30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, Roy Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	23	News Producer
26 Online Journalist 27 Online Video Producer 28 Post Production Editor 29 Producer/Director 30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, RNG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	24	News Community Promotion
27 Online Video Producer 28 Post Production Editor 29 Producer/Director 30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	25	On-Air Operator
28 Post Production Editor 29 Producer/Director 30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, Rome Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	26	Online Journalist
29 Producer/Director 30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, Rome Producer 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, New Reporter 48 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	27	Online Video Producer
30 Production Coordinator 31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	28	Post Production Editor
31 Program Coordinator 32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, New Reporter 48 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	29	Producer/Director
32 Quality Control Operator 33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, New Reporter 48 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	30	Production Coordinator
33 Receptionist 34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, New Reporter 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	31	Program Coordinator
34 Sales Assistant 35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, New Reporter 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	32	Quality Control Operator
35 Sales Promotions Coordinator 36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	33	Receptionist
36 Shipper 37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	34	Sales Assistant
37 Sports Anchor 38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	35	Sales Promotions Coordinator
38 Sports Reporter/Anchor 39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	36	Shipper
39 Studio Floor Director 40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	37	Sports Anchor
40 Supervisor, Commercial Production 41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	38	Sports Reporter/Anchor
41 Supervisor, Control Room Directors 42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	39	Studio Floor Director
42 Supervisor, Control Room Production 43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	40	Supervisor, Commercial Production
43 Supervisor, ENG Camera 44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	41	Supervisor, Control Room Directors
44 Supervisor, ENG Editor 45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	42	Supervisor, Control Room Production
45 Supervisor, News Producer 46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	43	Supervisor, ENG Camera
46 Supervisor, New Reporter 47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	44	Supervisor, ENG Editor
47 Supervisor, On-Air Services 48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	45	Supervisor, News Producer
48 Supervisor, Online 49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	46	Supervisor, New Reporter
49 Supervisor, Quality Control 50 Supervisor, Technical Services	47	Supervisor, On-Air Services
50 Supervisor, Technical Services	48	Supervisor, Online
	49	Supervisor, Quality Control
	50	Supervisor, Technical Services
51 Technical Producer	51	Technical Producer

52	Television Assistant
53	Videographer
54	Visual Journalist/Graphics Producer
55	Weather Anchor

Professional Activities

6.1 The first professional obligation of the employee shall be to the Employer. An employee shall not engage in activities or work which is in direct competition with the Company, except with the prior written approval of the Company.

6.2

- a) Unless the Employer and/or the Employee is required by law or by a court of competent jurisdiction or other competent authority to do so, no employee shall be required by the employer to give up custody of or disclose any knowledge, information, notes, documents and company tape recordings, films, film prints, negatives, videotapes, documents or the sources thereof to any party other than the employer.
- b) Where the employer has authorized the employee in writing to release for broadcast, material whose source is to be kept confidential then if the employee is proceeded against under the law on account of this refusal to surrender, disclose or authenticate the foregoing, the employer shall meet all the expenses incurred by the employee. The employer shall further compensate such employee against monetary loss, including but not limited to fines, damages or loss of pay provided the employee has not knowingly falsified such material for broadcast and provided that such material has been obtained in accordance with accepted journalistic practices.
- 6.3 Substantive changes in script content shall be brought to the employee's attention wherever possible before broadcast. Employees shall be given the reason for substantive changes to their material.
- 6.4 Except where libel has been proved, no criticism of an employee's work will be broadcast without first presenting such criticism to the employee and offering said employee time for reply in the same broadcast. This section is not meant to apply to corrections of fact or errors of omission.
- 6.5 Except in the case of an allegation of defamation no retraction of an employee's work shall be broadcast without every effort being made to first consult the employee.

6.6 Volunteer community work undertaken by employees shall not be pursued while the employee is at work without the written consent of the Company.

ARTICLE 7

Management Rights

- 7.1 It is recognized that the Management of the Company, the control of its properties and the maintenance of order on its premises is solely the responsibility of Management. Before implementing new rules and regulations, directly affecting the general working conditions, the Company will advise and explain such proposed rules and regulations to the Union.
- 7.2 The Union agrees that nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a limitation of the Company's rights to manage its affairs exclusively and that except where specifically restricted, abridged or modified by this Agreement, the Company holds and may exercise all of the rights, powers and authority which it possessed prior to the signing of this Agreement. The Union acknowledges that it is the exclusive function of the Company to hire, transfer, reclassify and suspend employees; and also the right of the Company to discipline or discharge any employee, provided that a claim by an employee who has acquired seniority, that he has been disciplined, discharged or suspended without just cause may be the subject of a grievance and dealt with as hereinafter provided; provided further that a claim by a probationary employee that he has been disciplined, suspended, or discharged without just cause, may be subject of grievance, and may be processed through the grievance procedure up to, but not including arbitration.
- 7.3 Provided further, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except where specifically restricted, abridged or modified by this Agreement, the Union recognizes the rights of the Company to operate and manage its business in all respects in accordance with its commitments and responsibilities. The location, number and size of plants, the direction of the working forces; the amount and type of supervision necessary of machines and technical equipment; procedures and standards of operations; the content of programs; judgement and final evaluation of personnel qualifications; the right to decide on the number of employees needed by the Company at any time; operating schedules and the selection, procurement, designing and engineering of equipment which may be incorporated into the Company's plants; control over all operations, buildings, machinery, equipment, and employees and its relationship with suppliers of materials and/or services, is solely and exclusively the responsibility of the Company.
- 7.4 The management rights of the Company as above set forth shall be exercised in all respects subject to this Agreement.

No Strike Breaking

- 8.1 The Company will not assign, transfer, or require employees to go to any radio station, television station, transmitter, studio or property where a lawful strike of persons whose functions are similar to those covered by this Agreement is in progress. Further, it will not originate a program or programs not normally fed to such facility, nor will the Company require any employee to perform the duty of other staff members engaged in a lawful strike.
- **8.1.1** Employees gathering news may attend at a strike location, and at their discretion, cross a picket line in the execution of their duties.

ARTICLE 9

Union Membership

- 9.1 All employees of the Company who were members of the Union as of January 1st, 1975 and any employee who was employed prior to January 1st, 1975 who subsequently joins the Union, and all employees hired after January 1st, 1975 shall become and/or remain a member in good standing of the Union as a condition of employment except as hereinafter provided.
- **9.1.1** Contract "on-air" talent engaged in accordance with Article 4.4 shall not be required as a condition of engagement to become members of the Union.
- 9.2 The Company may hire non-members provided however, that such new employees shall apply for membership in the Union within ninety (90) days after being hired and provided further that the Union will either accept or reject such application within thirty (30) days after receiving it.

ARTICLE 10

Rejection of Membership

10.1 The Company will discharge any employee covered by the provisions of Article 9 for the failure to pay dues and/or periodic assessments by the Union.

ARTICLE 11

Union Dues

11.1 During the term of this Agreement, the Company agrees to deduct monthly, an amount equal to the uniform dues and/or assessments as levied by the Union. The deductions are to be based on the gross monthly earnings of every employee in the bargaining unit, beginning with the date of hiring in the bargaining unit. The Company will be notified by registered mail of any changes in the present rate of deductions.

- 11.2 The Company agrees to remit the monies so deducted to the Union or its nominee, monthly by cheque, payable at par in Canadian Funds. The Company shall remit such dues by the fifteenth of the month following the month for which the dues are deducted, and shall include an electronic statement, showing the following:
 - a) The name, classification title and base salary of each bargaining unit employee;
 - b) The amount of dues deducted on base salary;
 - c) The name of any employee who has left or joined the Company since the last dues remittance.

ARTICLE 12

Non-Discrimination

- 12.1 The Company will not interfere with, restrain or coerce the employees covered by this Agreement because of membership in or lawful activity on behalf of the Union. The Company will not discriminate in respect to hiring, tenure of employment or any term of employment against any employee covered by this Agreement because of membership in or lawful activity on behalf of the Union, nor will it discourage membership in the Union, or attempt to encourage membership in another Union.
- **12.2** The Company policy regarding news/on-air employees campaigning for public office is acknowledged and agreed.
- 12.3 Employees shall enjoy equal rights under this Agreement regardless of sex, colour, racial, ethnic or national origin or religious or political affiliation or sexual orientation or gender identity or any other prohibited grounds as declared by the Canadian Human Rights Act.
- 12.4 A member of the Union who is employed in a supervisory capacity shall not be held accountable to the Union for any action taken when carrying on such duties for the Company, but this shall not be construed to prevent the filing of a grievance by the Union in respect of actions of any such member acting in a supervisory capacity in carrying on his duties for the Company.
- 12.5 The Union agrees that it will not discriminate against, coerce, restrain or influence any employee because of his non-membership in the Union.

Notification

- **13.1** The Company shall provide the local Union within five (5) days a copy of each of the following:
- 13.1.1 Notice of hiring, promotion, transfer, dismissal, extension of probationary period, suspension or any disciplinary action affecting any employee within the bargaining unit.
- **13.1.2** Any notice pertaining to the application or agreed to interpretation of this Agreement.
- 13.1.3 Notice of commencement by contractors including term of contract.
- 43.2 Any notification to an employee required under the provisions of the Collective Agreement is understood to mean that the Company will notify the employee directly.
- 13.3 The Company shall, when notifying a person of his acceptance as an employee, provide in writing the starting rate of pay and the classification to which he is assigned. A copy of this notice shall be sent to the Union in accordance with Article 13.1.1 of this Agreement. The Company shall also include at the same time, a copy of the current Collective Agreement, which shall be supplied by the Union.
- 13.4 The Company will, when remitting Union dues, designate which employees are employed on a part-time basis together with the number of hours worked by part-time employees other than those employed in Group 1.

ARTICLE 14

Leave for Union Activities

- 14.1 Upon request by the Union, the Company will release without loss of pay or other benefits, up to two (2) employees named by the Union to attend Grievance Meetings. Upon request by the Union, the Company will release without pay or benefits up to four (4) employees for Negotiation Meetings.
- 14.1.1 No more than one employee from each salary classification will be released for negotiation meetings unless the parties mutually agree.
- 14.2 Leave without pay will be granted to any employee duly authorized to represent employees in order to:
- 14.2.1 Attend Executive Council Meetings, Labour Conventions, Congresses, etc. A request for such leave shall be submitted at least fifteen (15) days in advance. It is understood that not more than five (5) employees shall be released at any one time.

- 14.2.2 Accept a position with the Union or an official labour body for a period not exceeding six (6) months. Such leave shall be granted by the Company on written request from the employee to the President of the Union provided such request is submitted thirty (30) days in advance.
- 14.3 Leave provided for in Article 14.2.2 shall not constitute a break in continuity of service in the computation of seniority and with respect to Article 14.2.1, shall not constitute a break in the continuity of service in the computation of seniority, or other benefits under this Agreement, i.e., those benefits relating to seniority or length of service.

Union Access to Premises

15.1 The Company will permit free access, upon reasonable notice, to its premises by an accredited Union official providing such access is at reasonable hours and does not interfere with the normal operation of the Company.

ARTICLE 16

No Strike Clause

16.1 The Union will not cause, nor permit its members to cause, nor will any member of the Union take part in a slow-down or a strike, either sit-down or stay-in, or any other kind of strike or any other kind of interference or any stoppage, total or partial, of any of the Company's operations during the term of this Agreement. The Company will not cause, or permit its employees to cause, engage in or permit a lockout of any of its operational locations during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17

Union Use of Bulletin Boards

- 17.1 The Company will provide a bulletin board for the exclusive use of the Union.
- 17.2 The Company agrees to the posting by the Union on such board of announcements regarding elections, meetings, negotiation developments and internal affairs of the Union, provided such notices are authorized by the Local Union Executive and a copy of such notice is provided to the President's Delegate before posting.

Company Seniority

- 18.1 Company seniority shall be deemed to have commenced on the date of hiring by the Company and shall be equal to the length of continuous service. Each of the three stations will have separate seniority lists.
- 18.2 Station seniority shall relate only to the order of layoffs, promotions, choice of vacation periods and the scheduling of Christmas/New Year Season Statutory Holidays.

ARTICLE 19

Interruption of Service

- 19.1 In the event an employee with one (1) year or more of Company seniority is laid off or is granted leave of absence or transferred to a position within the Company not covered by this Agreement, the following provisions shall apply:
- 19.1.1 Continuity of service for the purpose of Company seniority shall be considered unbroken if he returns to the status of an employee within one (1) year, except where Article 14.2.2 applies, or
- 19.1.2 If he returns to the status of an employee after one (1) year has elapsed, his Company seniority upon returning shall be that which he had on the effective date of such lay-off, transfer or leave of absence.
- 19.2 In the event an employee with less than one (1) year of Company seniority is laid off:
- 19.2.1 And he returns to the status of an employee before six (6) months have elapsed, his Company seniority upon returning will be that which he had on the date of such layoff.
- 19.3 Seniority shall cease to exist if the employee resigns or is discharged.

ARTICLE 20

Promotions & Transfers

20.1 The employee with the most Company seniority shall, if he meets the necessary qualifications set for the position by the Company, i.e. experience, skills, knowledge, ability and workplace performance be transferred to fill a vacancy and/or promoted to fill a vacancy. The employee will be given reasonable time and assistance to train for the new position. Nothing in this Article precludes the Company from hiring applicants from outside sources where no qualified employees apply and are accepted. All vacancies shall be posted internally for a minimum of five (5) days.

- 20.1.1 Should an applicant be unsuccessful, it is agreed that management will discuss with the employee if so requested, why his/her application was denied and will bring to the employee's attention any shortcomings which may affect his/her opportunities for advancement
- 20.2 An employee promoted to fill a vacancy in a higher classification shall be on probation in such classification for a period of up to three (3) months and in the case of Anchors and Reporters for a period of up to six (6) months. The Company may, at any time during this probationary period, return the employee to his former classification with no loss of seniority. At the conclusion of a successful probation period, the employee will be advised in writing that his promotion has been made permanent.
- 20.3 Without his consent, no employee shall be permanently transferred or assigned to another job classification and the employee will not be penalized for such refusal.
- 20.3.1 No employee shall be permanently transferred to a location outside the greater Calgary, Edmonton or Lethbridge area except by mutual agreement.
- 20.4 Without his consent, no employee shall be transferred or assigned to a position outside the bargaining unit and the employee will not be penalized for such refusal.
- 20.5 Employees who perform in a job classification different from their regular classification and for which they have not received adequate training will not be penalized for errors committed during such performance, where the error relates to the lack of adequate training.
- 20.6 When an employee is transferred into a higher pay classification he shall immediately move into the higher salary scale and receive a salary increase which is at least the equivalent of one full increment in his former group, plus the amount necessary to place him on scale in the new classification, and shall automatically progress upward on the annual or semi-annual anniversary date of appointment.

Upgrading

21.1 In the event that an employee is temporarily assigned to perform work in excess of one (1) hour in any tour of duty, in a higher rated classification, the employee shall be paid an additional two (\$2.00) per hour above their current rate for each hour so worked, with a minimum credit of four (4) hours. This clause shall not be used for the purpose of reducing the number of employees in the classification to which such an employee is being upgraded. At the time of such assignment an employee shall be verbally advised of the temporary upgrading and this shall be recorded on the employee's time sheets.

Employees temporarily assigned to perform the duties of Non-Bargaining Unit Supervisor, or Manager shall be paid twenty (\$20.00) for each eight (8) hour tour of duty or part thereof and the employee's hourly rate shall be adjusted accordingly.

- 21.1.1 The provisions of Article 21.1 shall not apply when an employee is assigned to work of a higher classification for training or trial, for a maximum of fifteen (15) days and where a qualified staff member is assigned to assist in such training. Further, 21.1 shall not apply when an employee temporarily relieves another employee in a higher classification for break periods.
- 21.2 In the event of a temporary upgrading of an employee for a period of more than one (1) day [but in no event may a temporary upgrading be of greater duration than three (3) calendar months with the exception of parental leave] the employee so temporarily upgraded shall be verbally advised at the time of his assignment to a higher classification. Such advice shall also stipulate the probable duration of such temporary upgrading.
- 21.3 Where upgrading involves a job combination(s) the duration of upgrading may be extended to a period of six (6) months. If the combination job function averages sixteen (16) or more hours per week and continues beyond six (6) months the employee shall be re-classified to the higher-rated job function and shall be placed on the new scale in accordance with the provisions of Article 20.6.
- 21.4 Training: Bargaining unit employees who are not classified as supervisory, senior or other comparable classifications shall be entitled to claim upgrading as per Article 21 when assigned to train other employees. The parties recognize that there is a difference between training and familiarization and there will be no requirement to pay upgrading for familiarization.
- 21.5 Satellite Truck Operation: In the event that an employee is assigned to operate the satellite truck in any tour of duty, the employee shall be paid an additional two dollars (\$2.00) per hour above their current rate for each hour worked with a minimum credit of four (4) hours. This upgrade does not apply when the satellite truck is used to perform microwave transmission.

ARTICLE 22

Dismissals & Resignations

22.1 The dismissal, demotion or discipline of a non-probationary employee shall be for just and sufficient cause. The employee shall be informed of the Company's decision to discharge, demote, or discipline him by notice in writing.

Lay-Offs

- 23.1 The Company will consult with the Local Union executive with respect to any planned lay-off prior to any final decision being made, and prior to any discussions with those employees that may be affected. At this meeting the Company shall supply in writing a complete seniority list, names and classifications, of those affected and the reason for lay-off. It is understood that this consultation will be deemed strictly confidential and as such, the proceedings will not be disclosed to any other individual, prior to the Company notifying the individual employee(s). Notice of such meeting shall be a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours. When lay-offs are to be made, such lay-offs shall proceed in inverse order of Company seniority within those job functions and categories where the work has been reduced or eliminated; said job functions are listed in Article 5.1.1.
- 23.1.1 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a more senior employee in a job classification may offer to be laid off in the place of a more junior employee. If the offer is accepted by the company, the more senior employee will waive his bumping rights and will receive the severance provided for in Article 23.3.1.
- 23.2 Any employee about to be laid off from one job function who has the necessary qualifications set by the Company for another job function may apply his Company seniority and revert to such other function. Such qualifications shall be set in a bona fide manner. No employee is to be displaced by a more senior employee unless the latter possesses the occupational qualifications of the job filled by the employee with less seniority.
 - Notwithstanding, employees may not exercise bumping rights to anchor classifications.
- 23.2.1 Employees who bump into a different classification shall retain recall rights, for up to one year, as per Article 24, to their former classification.
- 23.2.2 In the event an employee reverts to a lower wage group, he/she shall continue to receive his/her higher salary for up to 3 months at which point the employee's salary shall be reduced to an amount equal to the closest equivalent rate in the lower wage group not in excess of his previous rate, and then such employee will precede on the scale in accordance with Article 31.
- **23.2.3** Employees who bump into a higher job group shall be paid at a rate within the new group closest to, but greater than, their rate of pay prior to the bump.
- 23.2.4 Employees must declare their intent to bump within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving lay-off notice. An employee so bumped shall receive six (6) weeks' notice. However, should a bumping opportunity arise during the notice period, that was not available at the time of declaration, the employee shall have his/her right to bump

- provided that the employee notifies the Company of his/her intention to do so within seven (7) calendar days of the new opportunity.
- 23.2.5 Subject to Article 23.1, where a part-time employee has more Company seniority than a full-time employee, the full-time employee shall receive the lay-off, however should the Company require a full-time employee in the job function affected; the most senior part-time employee shall be offered the full-time position. It is further agreed that should that person refuse the position, it shall then be offered to the next most senior employee within the classification.
- 23.3 In the event of lay-offs, employees affected will receive six (6) weeks' written notice or six (6) weeks' salary in lieu of notice, plus severance pay, and accrued vacation pay.
- 23.3.1 In the event of lay-offs, under either Articles 23 or 27, employees affected will receive two (2) weeks' severance for each completed year of service up to seven (7) years, and three (3) weeks' severance pay for each completed year of service, beyond seven (7) years, to a maximum of fifty-two weeks.
- 23.4 While an employee is laid off, the Company will continue the total group health and welfare payments (excluding long term disability) for the period of lay-off up to a maximum of six (6) months or until the employee is eligible for benefits at the new place of employment.
- 23.5 The Company agrees that it will not consistently schedule overtime in order to affect or extend lay-offs.
- 23.6 It shall be the intention of the Company to give full consideration for job vacancies within the bargaining unit to those employees who are to be laid-off.

Re-Engagement & Recall

- 24.1 Where any full-time or regular part-time work becomes available for which a laid-off employee is qualified, the Company agrees to re-engage, employees in order of company seniority. The qualifications will be set in a reasonable manner.
 - (Definition For the purpose of this Article "re-engage" means to return to work in a full-time or regular part-time position.)
- 24.2 Where any other part-time or temporary bargaining unit work becomes available for which a laid-off employee is qualified, the Company agrees to re-call, employees in order of company seniority. The qualifications shall be set in a reasonable manner.
 - (Definition For the purpose of this Article "recall" means to return to work in any part-time or temporary hours.

- **24.3** Employees laid off under Article 23 will be entitled to re-engagement or recall for one (1) year from the date of lay-off.
- 24.3.1 Employees who are recalled or re-engaged to positions other than their previous job classification will continue to have re-engagement rights to former job classifications for one year from the date of layoff or for as long as re-engagement / recall rights continue under Article 24.4.
- 24.4 In the event an employee on lay-off works one hundred forty-four hours or more over any six (6) consecutive work weeks, his/her recall rights shall be re-established for another twelve (12) months.
- 24.4.1 When an employee on lay-off has worked more than 910 regular (non overtime) hours over any 180 consecutive day window, the employee shall be considered to have reverted to full-time status. This does not include shifts worked to cover the absence of employees on leave.

The Company will not manipulate or re-schedule productions, projects and shifts in order to avoid the re-establishment of recall rights as described above.

- **24.5** The Company's responsibility will be considered to be fulfilled if the Company:
 - a) In the case of re-engagement, sends all relevant job postings by letter or by courier, to the last known address of the affected persons on layoff. The employee must notify the Company of their intention within three (3) days of receipt of the letter or ten (10) working days of mailing the letter.
 - b) In the case of re-call, contacts the employee in person or by telephone and where possible leaves a message.
- 24.6 Where an employee has been re-called or re-engaged pursuant to this Article and has been paid severance in accordance with Article 23.3.1, the employee's seniority for the purposes of severance shall be considered that of a new employee.
- 24.7 Where an employee has accepted re-engagement to scheduled hours or shifts and cancels for reasons other than illness or other valid reason, the employee forfeits rights to re-call and re-engagement for a period of six (6) months.

ARTICLE 25

Performance Reports

25.1 Employees shall be advised immediately [within ten (10) working days] of the contents of any review or report which concerns them. They shall be furnished with a copy of any complaint or accusation which may be detrimental to their advancement or standing within the Company. An employee shall sign the Company's copy of the report on performance, thus acknowledging receipt. Such signature will not be

considered as concurring with the contents. If this procedure is not followed, such expression of dissatisfaction shall not become part of their records for use against them at any time.

- 25.2 The employee's reply to such complaint or accusation if received within ten (10) working days after he has been given the notice referred to in Article 25.1 above, shall become part of his record. If such reply is not so received, it will not become part of his record for use by him at any time.
- 25.3 An employee shall have access to his personal performance file during office hours in the presence of his supervisor and in the presence of a Union Steward or local officer, if the employee wishes.
- 25.4 Any complaint or accusation which may be detrimental to the advancement or standing within the Company and the employee's reply to such complaint or accusation shall be removed from the employee's file after thirty (30) months of issuance.

ARTICLE 26

Duties and Responsibilities

- 26.1 The Union has jurisdiction over the work or functions performed by members of the Bargaining Unit as defined in Article 2.1 occurring in or out of the premises of Global Television, Alberta. The Company will not transfer, assign, or sub-contract any work within that jurisdiction to persons outside of the Bargaining Unit, whether or not employed by the Company, if such action will displace a bargaining unit employee.
- 26.1.1 Displacement shall mean the layoff, dismissal, termination, reduction in regular hours of work, or the failure to recall from layoff of a full or part-time employee, or to avoid the hiring of employees, or for the express purpose of avoiding penalties stipulated under this Collective Agreement.
- 26.2 Notwithstanding anything otherwise contained in this Collective Agreement, the Company may use temporary, part-time, and/or contractors as referred to in this agreement. This is subject to the extent of the prevailing percent rule for each station.

UNION SEAL AND AIR CREDITS

- 26.3 Every audio/video recording or news program produced by the Company shall have the UNIFOR seal legibly exhibited on the following:
 - a) Film/tape billboard
 - b) All tape or film containers
 - c) Closing credits
- 26.3.1 News program credits will use the text "UNIFOR" in place of the UNIFOR seal at the end of news broadcasts wherever the Corus Entertainment copyright is displayed.

Technological Change

- 27.1 In the event that the Company introduces or permits to be used any process, machinery or equipment which substitutes for, supplements or replaces any present process, machinery or equipment being operated as of the date of this Agreement by employees within the bargaining unit, such process, machinery, or equipment shall be operated and maintained only by employees in the bargaining unit herein set forth
- 27.1.2 The introduction of Computer hardware and/or software shall be considered a Technological change with respect to the application of this Article provided that such introduction has occurred within one (1) year of displacement of an employee.
- 27.2 Should the introduction, replacement, supplementation or modification of any machinery, equipment, device, which is or would fall under the jurisdiction of the employees in the bargaining unit, result in the lay-off (as distinguished from lay-offs caused by changes in programming) of employees, the Company recognizes additional moral obligations to such employees and agrees to the following conditions in fulfillment of such obligations.
- 27.2.1 The Company will give the Union and the employees as much advance notice as is practicable, but not less than six (6) months notification of such lay-offs, or six (6) months pay in lieu of said notice plus all other benefits for the same period. Further, it is understood that employees laid off under this Article are entitled to all the provisions set out under the Lay-off and Re-Engagement Articles of this agreement.
- 27.2.2 The notice provided by the Company to the Union shall state:
 - a) The nature of the change(s) contemplated.
 - b) The date upon which the company proposes to effect the change(s).
 - The number and type of employees affected by the change(s).
- 27.2.3 Where an employee(s) is displaced due to technological change, he shall be entitled to exercise bumping rights as per Article 23.2, at any point prior to the effective date of lay-off. Further, such employee shall maintain recall rights as per Article 24 during which time the Company agrees to re-engage said employee(s), based on seniority, and to any vacancy other than listed below that may occur within the bargaining unit. To obtain proficiency in his/her classification the employee(s) shall be given three (3) months after the date of re-engagement, which may be extended to six (6) months upon mutual agreement between the Company and the Union. The employee shall receive reasonable and adequate training during normal working hours. Employees shall be paid at the start rate within the new classification or their previous rate, whichever is less. If, in the sole opinion of the Company, the employee has failed to show sufficient ability in the new position, the employee shall return to lay-off status or if their re-call rights have been exhausted shall be considered terminated.

There shall be no requirement to re-engage employees to a supervisory position unless the employee was previously performing in a supervisory position. There shall be no requirement to re-call to the following job functions unless the employee previously occupied that iob function:

- All job functions listed in Group D and above
- Maintenance Technician
- 27.5 Where a position is created as a result of technological change and/or the combination of job functions as a result of technological change, such position shall fall under the jurisdiction of the bargaining unit. Further, it is agreed that any new job function that may be created shall be referred to the Classification Committee.

ARTICLE 28

Grievance Procedure

- 28.1 It is mutually agreed that it is the spirit and intent of this Agreement to adjust, as quickly as possible, grievances arising from the application, administration, interpretation or alleged violation of this Agreement.
- 28.2 The parties recognize that the "Canada Labour Code" provides that any employee may present his personal grievance to his employer at any time. Any such grievance may be subject to consideration and adjustment as provided in the following articles on grievance procedure.
- 28.3 In the event of a dispute between any member or members of the bargaining unit and the Company, in reference to the application, administration, interpretation or alleged violation of this Agreement, the following shall be the procedure for adjustment and settlement thereof:
 - <u>STEP 1:</u> The grievance shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof delivered to the appropriate local department Manager, within fifteen (15) working days of the grievance arising.
 - <u>STEP 2:</u> The grievance shall be discussed with the News Director/Station Manager, Department Manager or his designee and the Local Grievance committee consisting of not more than three (3) members. Such discussions will deal with grievances of which at least two (2) days notice shall have been received. Such meetings shall take place within (10) days of the request for a meeting. Appropriate records of such meeting shall be kept.
 - STEP 3: If the grievance is not recorded as settled within ten (10) working days after the meeting described in Step 2, the dispute shall be referred to the News Director/Station Manager or Department Director and the Union office for further discussion and consideration.

- <u>STEP 4:</u> In the event that the representative of the Company and the Union cannot reach an agreement, the dispute may, by written notice of either party to the other party, be submitted to final and binding arbitration. The parties shall, within ten (10) working days of sending the notice requesting arbitration select a mutually acceptable arbitrator. If the parties are unable to agree on the selection of an arbitrator within the time limits prescribed, the Federal Minister of Labour shall be requested to appoint the arbitrator. The cost and/or expenses of such arbitration shall be borne equally by the Company and the Union, except that no party shall be obliged to pay the cost of stenographic transcript without express consent.
- 28.4 The arbitrator shall not have the power to change, modify, extend or amend the provisions of this Agreement, but shall have the power to direct, if he thinks proper, that any employee who has been wrongfully suspended, discharged, or otherwise disciplined shall be re-instated with any other benefit under this Agreement which may have been lost. In case of dismissal the arbitrator shall have the jurisdiction and authority to determine appropriate compensation in lieu of re-instatement.
- 28.5 If either of the parties to this Agreement considers that this Agreement is being misinterpreted, or violated in any respect by the other party, the matter may be discussed between representatives of the Company and the Union, and if not satisfactorily settled, either party may refer the matter to arbitration as provided in Step 4 of Section 28.3.
- 28.6 Time Limits: Any time limit mentioned under grievance procedure shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and Statutory Holidays and may be extended by mutual consent.
- 28.7 Employees shall suffer no loss of pay or other benefits while attending grievance meetings with the Company.

ARTICLE 29 Rates of Pay

29.1 Semi- Monthly Rates of Pay for Global Calgary and Global Edmonton

Group A Receptionist; Shipper

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$39,106	\$39,497	\$40,089
2 year	\$40,280	\$40,683	\$41,293
3 year	\$41,488	\$41,903	\$42,532
4 year	\$43,562	\$43,998	\$44,658
5 year	\$45,740	\$46,197	\$46,890

Group B	Sales Assistant	1	1
	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$40,657	\$41,064	\$41,680
2 year	\$41,877	\$42,296	\$42,930
3 year	\$43,133	\$43,564	\$44,217
4 year	\$44,428	\$44,872	\$45,545
5 year	\$45,761	\$46,219	\$46,912
6 year	\$47,134	\$47,605	\$48,319
7 year	\$48,547	\$49,032	\$49,767
8 year	\$50,975	\$51,485	\$52,257
9 vear	\$53,523	\$54 058	\$54 869

Group C	Administrative Assistant, Television Assistant, News Assistant		
	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$41,877	\$42,296	\$42,930
2 year	\$43,133	\$43,564	\$44,217
3 year	\$44,428	\$44,872	\$45,545
4 year	\$45,761	\$46,219	\$46,912
5 year	\$47,134	\$47,605	\$48,319
6 year	\$48,547	\$49,032	\$49,767
7 year	\$50,975	\$51,485	\$52,257
8 year	\$53,523	\$54,058	\$54,869
9 year	\$56,936	\$57,505	\$58,368

Administrative Assistant: Television Assistant: News Assistant

Group C

Group D News Camera; News Editor; Studio Floor Director; Media Coordinator;
Computer Graphics/Artist; Community Relations Coordinator; Production
Coordinator: Associate News Producer

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$47,257	\$47,730	\$48,446
2 year	\$48,675	\$49,162	\$49,899
3 year	\$50,135	\$50,636	\$51,396
4 year	\$51,639	\$52,155	\$52,937
5 year	\$53,188	\$53,720	\$54,526
6 year	\$54,784	\$55,332	\$56,162
7 year	\$56,428	\$56,992	\$57,847
8 year	\$59,248	\$59,840	\$60,738
9 year	\$62,212	\$62,834	\$63,777

Group E
Assistant Assignment Editor/Writer; Program Coordinator; On-Air Operator;
Quality Control Operator; Broadcast Technologist; News Promotion
Writer/Producer; Sales Promotions Coordinator; System Analyst; Automated
Control Room Technician; Online Video Producer; News Camera/Editor

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$51,578	\$52,094	\$52,615
2 year	\$53,126	\$53,657	\$54,462
3 year	\$54,719	\$55,266	\$56,095
4 year	\$56,361	\$56,925	\$57,779
5 year	\$58,052	\$58,633	\$59,512
6 year	\$59,794	\$60,392	\$61,298
7 year	\$61,587	\$62,203	\$63,136
8 year	\$64,667	\$65,314	\$66,294
9 year	\$67,900	\$68,579	\$69,608

Group F Art Director; EFP Camera/Audio; Producer/Director; Post Production Editor; Design Editor; Technical Producer; Automated Control Room Director; Visual Journalist/Graphic Producer; Online Journalist; News Producer; Commercial Writer/Producer

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$59,471	\$60,066	\$60,967
2 year	\$61,255	\$61,868	\$62,796
3 year	\$63,091	\$63,722	\$64,678
4 year	\$64,985	\$65,635	\$66,620
5 year	\$66,935	\$67,604	\$68,618
6 year	\$70,281	\$70,984	\$72,049
7 year	\$73,795	\$74,533	\$75,651

Group G

Assignment Editor/Writer; Sports Reporter/Anchor; Supervisor, Technical Services; Supervisor, On Air; Supervisor, Quality Control; Supervisor, Commercial Production; Supervisor, Control Room Directors; Supervisor, Control Room Production; News Reporter; Supervisor, News Editor; Supervisor, News Camera

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$61,808	\$62,426	\$63,362
2 year	\$63,721	\$64,358	\$65,323
3 year	\$65,633	\$66,289	\$76,283
4 year	\$67,601	\$68,277	\$69,301
5 year	\$69,630	\$70,326	\$71,381
6 year	\$71,719	\$72,436	\$73,523
7 year	\$75,305	\$76,058	\$77,199
8 year	\$79,070	\$79,861	\$81,059

Group H Digital Journalist; Supervisor, News Reporter; Supervisor, News Producer; Supervisor, Online

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$63,044	\$63,674	\$64,629
2 year	\$64,995	\$65,645	\$66,630
3 year	\$66,945	\$67,614	\$68,628
4 year	\$68,953	\$69,643	\$70,688
5 year	\$71,022	\$71,732	\$72,808
6 year	\$73,153	\$73,885	\$74,993
7 year	\$76,810	\$77,578	\$78,742
8 year	\$80,651	\$81,458	\$82,680

Group I Anchor/Reporter; Sports Anchor; Weather Anchor; Anchor/DJ

	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$68,972	\$69,662	\$70,707
2 year	\$71,041	\$71,751	\$72,827
3 year	\$73,172	\$73,904	\$75,013
4 year	\$75,368	\$76,122	\$77,264
5 year	\$77,628	\$78,404	\$79,580
6 year	\$81,510	\$82,325	\$83,560
7 year	\$85,586	\$86,442	\$87,739

29.2 Rates of Pay for Global Lethbridge

Group A News Community Promotion: Videographer

Oldup A	News Community Fromotion, Videographic		
	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$39,341	\$39,734	\$40,330
2 year	\$40,522	\$40,927	\$41,541
3 year	\$41,737	\$42,154	\$42,786
4 year	\$42,989	\$43,419	\$44,070
5 year	\$44,278	\$44,721	\$45,392
6 year	\$46,493	\$46,958	\$47,662
7 year	\$48,817	\$49,305	\$50,045
8 year	\$50,093	\$50,594	\$51,353

Group B News Production Coordinator; Digital Journalist

oroup B	Trong Freddoller Socialitator, Digital Socialitator		
	May 1/22	May 1/23	May 1/24
1 year	\$45,843	\$46,301	\$46,996
2 year	\$47,218	\$47,690	\$48,405
3 year	\$48,635	\$49,121	\$49,858
4 year	\$50,093	\$50,594	\$51,353
5 year	\$51,596	\$52,112	\$52,894
6 year	\$54,177	\$54,719	\$55,540
7 year	\$56,885	\$57,454	\$58,316

General Wage Increase (All locations):

The Company agrees to pay employees the following lump sum upon ratification of Memorandum of Agreement: \$1200 Full Time, \$600 Part Time

May 1, 2023 1.0% May 1, 2024 1.5%

General Wage Provisions

- 30.1 Employees shall be paid according to the wage schedule of the classification to which they are assigned, with credit for years of service within the classification and any credit for industry experience recognized by the Company at the time of hiring.
- 30.2 The parties recognize that certain employees are receiving higher salaries than those specified in Article 30, as a result of individual negotiations prior to this agreement. It is agreed that no employee shall suffer a loss of income as a result of the wage scales herein negotiated.
- 30.2.1 An employee who is being paid more than the "top of the scale" will receive an increase as determined by the Company but in no event shall such increase be less than the dollar amount accorded to the "top of the scale" in the wage group to which such persons are assigned.
- 30.3 Progression up the salary schedule within each classification shall automatically occur on the first complete pay period of the month nearest to the employee's semi-annual or annual anniversary date of appointment.
- 30.4 Employees shall complete their semi-monthly time sheets by the end of the first working day of the week following the week covered by the time sheets. Overtime that is submitted late may not be authorised unless the employee can demonstrate the reason overtime was worked. The company will provide photocopies of each altered time sheet, within one (1) week of the alteration, to the employee.
- 30.5 Salaries will be paid on the 15th and the last day of each month. Should the 15th or last day of the month be a non-banking day, it will be paid on the last preceding legal banking day.
- **30.6** A breakdown of overtime hours and penalties shall be shown on pay stubs.
- 30.7 Payment for overtime work, premiums, and penalties will be made not later than the pay period following the pay period that such overtime, etc., is worked.
- 30.8 For the purposes of computing an employee's hourly rate of basic pay, his/her semi-monthly salary shall be divided by 86.67 hours.
- 30.9 Each year the Company will indicate on the T4 and TP4 slips issued to employees, the total amount of dues deducted at source and forwarded to UNIFOR.

Senior Designation

A senior designation may be granted to any employee in the bargaining unit who demonstrates the stated criteria below. A senior designation shall be considered as "merit" and will be awarded at management discretion. It is understood by the parties that these are not vacant positions and will not be posted.

In order for an employee to be considered for a senior designation, it is understood the employee must excel on all of the following criteria:

- Core Competency and Technical Knowledge The employee demonstrates an in-depth knowledge of the job; keeps up-to-date with new and changing technologies and methods of work.
- Work Performance The employee excels in the performance of their job duties. Work performance is consistently at a high level in terms of quality, accuracy and level of output. The employee is relied on by others to perform work which is error free with minimal guidance or instruction.
- Problem Solving Skills The employee readily accepts assignments or tasks of a challenging nature and consistently meets objectives. Strong comprehension of obstacles, consequences and alternatives is demonstrated. The employee overcomes obstacles in a constructive manner and work is completed without difficulty.
- Good Role Model The employee is able to encourage others through their own
 performance. They are respected by their peers and may provide guidance to
 others on the completion of tasks and maintenance of standards or productivity.
- Ability to Evolve and Grow The employee has adjusted professionally to changing priorities and objectives. Willingness to accept new challenges and acquire new skills required to meet organizational objective have been demonstrated. The employee implements new approaches or practices to improve quality or productivity.
- Leadership The employee takes the lead in completing tasks, assignments or projects. The employee supports the work of others through constructive advice and/or suggestions. The employee is respected for their leadership role.
- Ability and Willingness to Train The employee provides guidance and advice to
 others in their area of expertise and when requested demonstrates techniques,
 skills and tasks to others. May provide formal training to employees to ensure
 work is completed to standard.
- Interpersonal Skills The employee is able to discuss and exchange ideas and suggestions with tact in order to encourage teamwork and accomplish goals. The

employee demonstrates an ability to work cooperatively with others in the achievement of objectives on time and to a high standard of quality and output.

- 9. Accountability, Commitment, Punctuality and Attendance The employee is consistently dependable in terms of attendance and approach to work. The employee contributes to the success of the department by consistently completing work assignments on time and frequently with above standard results. The employee may support the organizational objective of employees in other departments through a cooperative work approach.
- Positive Attitude Ideas and suggestions are readily exchanged with others. The employee is dependable, demonstrates a positive attitude and is routinely helpful to others.

An employee who wishes to be considered for the Senior Designation, will put their request in writing, including any documents supporting their application. This request must be submitted to their manager by January 31st. By March 31st, the Manager will review the employee's application and communicate the decision.

In the event timelines in the above require an extension, applicants will be notified by the Company. Where an extension has been provided for the March 31st deadline, successful applicants will receive retroactive payment to April 1st.

If the employee's request is denied, the manager will meet with the employee to provide written feedback as to why **the designation** has not been granted. It is agreed that the failure to qualify for a senior designation will not be the subject of a grievance; however the failure to follow the process may be subject to a grievance.

When an employee is successful in receiving the Senior Designation, he shall immediately move into the next higher salary scale and receive a salary increase which is at least the equivalent of one full increment in his former group, plus the amount necessary to place him on scale in the new classification, and shall automatically progress upward on the annual or semi-annual anniversary date of appointment.

If an employee is in the highest group (Group I) they will receive a 2% pay increase for their senior designation.

It is agreed and understood that all employees with a Senior Designation will meet and sustain the above stated 10 criteria.

Appointment of Senior designation is conditional on operational needs and budgets.

Work Week

32.1

Calgary / Lethbridge

The forty (40) hour week shall obtain and shall commence at 00:01 a.m. Monday, and shall be inclusive of the first thirty (30) minutes of the first meal period and all other meal and break periods.

Edmonton

The work week for all employees, other than freelance, temporary (casual), or parttime employees, and office staff, shall be forty (40) hours per week and shall commence at 00:01 hours, Monday. The hours of work will be exclusive of the first meal period and inclusive of break periods and all subsequent meal periods.

ARTICLE 33

Tour of Duty

33.1 A tour of duty shall mean the authorized and/or approved time worked by an employee during a day, with a minimum credit of eight (8) hours, calculated to the last quarter (1/4) hour in which work was performed; provided that if it extends beyond midnight, it shall be considered as falling wholly within the calendar day in which it starts. Split shifts may be assigned where mutually agreeable between the Company, the employee, and the Union. Such agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE 34

Excessive Hours and Safety

- 34.1 The employer shall adopt and use methods and procedures which are adequate to render its employment or place of employment safe, and shall do everything necessary to protect the life, health and safety of its employees.
- 34.2 Having due regard to health and safety, the Company agrees to try to equalize the work load so that any individual employee is not repeatedly scheduled excessive work hours.
- 34.3 No employee shall be required to work under hazardous conditions. Where dangerous or hazardous work is involved, all reasonable safety and precautionary measures shall be taken by the Company. An employee's refusal to undertake such dangerous or hazardous work will in no way be held against the employee or prejudice his employment with the Company.

- 34.4 The employer shall give consideration to the capabilities of an employee for an assignment involving climbing towers and ladders.
- 34.5 The employer agrees to supply protective clothing, safety footwear, and/or safety devices for employees on assignments (e.g. remotes, towers) where conditions require their use, and to supply other special attire where required by the Employer. It is understood that such protective clothing and/or safety devices are and remain the property of the employer and shall be returned in good condition on demand.
- 34.5.1 The Company shall pay fifty percent of the cost of cold weather clothing to mobile, ENG, EFP, and maintenance personnel. The Company will replace worn out clothing on the same cost sharing basis no more often than once every two years. Employees shall be solely responsible for lost or misplaced clothing and for clothing damaged other than by reasonable wear and tear.
- 34.5.2 For those employees listed in Article 34.5.1, the Company shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the cost of cold weather clothing. The company will replace worn out clothing on the same cost sharing basis no more often than once every two (2) years. Employees shall be solely responsible for lost or misplaced clothing and for clothing damaged other than by reasonable wear and tear.
- **34.6** When transportation is provided to employees by the employer, the appropriate safety standards shall be observed.
- 34.7 The parties agree to give proper attention to the health and safety of employees. To this end, there shall be a safety committee made up of Company and Union representatives.

Posting of Schedules

- 35.1 Each employee's schedule for any week shall be posted as early as possible, but in no event later than 12:00 noon on the Tuesday, two (2) weeks prior to the week in question. It is the intent of the foregoing to ensure that each employee is advised of his work schedule at the earliest possible time.
- 35.1.1 Each employee's schedule shall state clearly the daily starting time, finishing time, days off and meal periods. An employee's scheduled days off can be changed up to seven (7) calendar days before the days in question. Any work scheduled on a posted day off shall fall under the provisions of Article 39.
- 35.1.2 In the event that an employee's schedule for any week is not posted in accordance with Article 35.1 and 35.1.1 the previous weekly schedule shall carry over until a new schedule is posted, subject to all provisions of the Collective Agreement.

35.2 Employees shall have the right to refuse to work a permanent midnight shift, however, if all qualified employees in the job classification refuse to work, the Company may assign the work to the most junior employee within that job classification

ARTICLE 36

Change of Starting Time

- 36.1 Notice of change in starting time shall be given as much in advance as possible, but not later than 16:00 of the last working day of the employee prior to the day of the change. When an employee is on duty, the Company will be deemed to have given notice when such notice is posted and the Company has made every reasonable effort to reach the employee. If the employee is off duty, the Company will notify the employee directly. If such notice is not given the employee shall be credited with all hours originally scheduled plus any additional hours.
- 36.2 Prior to going on leave of five (5) days or more, an employee shall be given a written pre-arranged time to report back. This time, however, may be re-scheduled later but not earlier than the pre-arranged time. The Company must make a reasonable effort to notify the employee of such change. The Company shall be considered to have made a reasonable effort when a registered letter of notification has been mailed to the employee's normal mailing address designed to arrive prior to the pre-arranged reporting time.
- 36.3 It is the responsibility of an employee to report to the Supervisor in charge of scheduling, advising when he will be available for duty following absence due to illness or physical injury. It is the Company's responsibility to then or subsequently inform the employee of any change in his schedule.
- 36.4 It is the intent of the foregoing to ensure that each employee shall be apprised of his daily work schedule at the earliest possible time.

ARTICLE 37

Lateness

- 37.1 An employee who reports late at his work or for a tour of duty may be subject to reduction in pay in the following manner when such lateness is not due to an unusual circumstance beyond the control of the employee:
- $\textbf{37.1.1} \qquad \text{Between three (3) and fifteen (15) minutes fifteen (15) minutes pay}.$
- 37.1.2 Between fifteen (15) and thirty (30) minutes one-half (1/2) hour's pay.
- 37.1.3 Between thirty (30) and forty-five (45) minutes forty-five (45) minutes pay.

- 37.1.4 Between forty-five (45) minutes and one (1) hour one (1) hour's pay.
- 37.1.5 If an employee is more than one (1) hour late he shall be permitted to start work subject to the above deductions, unless that employee is instructed to the contrary by his supervisor in writing or verbally by his supervisor and then subsequently confirmed in writing by the supervisor within forty-eight (48) hours after the occurrence in question.
- 37.2 Notwithstanding any of the above, no pay shall be deducted from an employee when he is late provided that the said employee has arranged for another employee to perform his duties until such time as the employee in fact reports for work. It is understood that the employees shall not make it common practice to arrange for other employees to assume their duties due to lateness and that such arrangements shall only be made infrequently.

Davs Off

- 38.1 Two (2) scheduled days off shall be defined as forty-eight (48) hours plus the turnaround period of twelve (12) hours for a total of sixty (60) hours. Three (3) and four (4) scheduled days off in separate work weeks shall be defined respectively as seventy-two (72) hours plus the turn-around period and ninety-six (96) hours plus the turn-around period. When the two (2) scheduled days off are separated as provided in Article 38.5, there shall be eighty-four (84) hours between the end of the last tour and before the beginning of the next tour. following such days off.
- 38.2 An additional day off is defined as twenty-four (24) hours plus the turn-around period, where applicable, i.e. where the day off in question is not scheduled conterminously with regular days off as defined in Article 38.1 and shall be scheduled at a mutually agreeable time. The additional day off shall be clearly indicated on the posted schedule.
- 38.3 There shall be two (2) consecutive days off in each work week. The Company shall make every effort to schedule the days off on weekends as frequently as possible and will endeavour to avoid requiring an employee to work more than two (2) weekends in a row. The Company may average these weekends off over a three (3) month period. However, an employee must receive a minimum of five (5) weekends (Saturday and Sunday) off during each three (3) calendar months. Where an employee does not receive a minimum of five (5) weekends off during each calendar quarter, commencing on January 1st in each year, such employee shall receive, in lieu of any such missed weekends, a penalty computed at one-half (1/2) his basic rate for regular hours worked on such weekend. Such penalty shall not be deemed overtime or part of basic pay.

- 38.3.1 The Company may hire employees to work consecutive weekends. The successful applicant shall be so advised in writing. Such employees shall not be entitled to the weekends off provisions of Article 38.3.
- 38.4 The five (5) days in any work week need not necessarily be consecutive; they may be separated by the two (2) consecutive days off.
- 38.5 Two (2) scheduled days off may be separated by a holiday only when no work is scheduled on that holiday.

Work On a Day Off

- 39.1 An employee may refuse to work on his scheduled day off. When all employees in the job classification refuse work on their day off, the most junior person on a day off within that job classification may be assigned. No employee except the most junior qualified employee, in exercising the foregoing right of refusal will be penalized for refusing to work on a scheduled day off.
- 39.2 When an employee works on a scheduled day off, in accordance with Article 39.1, work performed on that day shall be compensated as follows:
- 39.2.1 If work is performed or credited on one day off in a week, time and one-half (11/2) computed separately from the work week for all hours worked with a minimum credit of eight (8) hours.
- 39.2.2 If work is performed or credited on any days off scheduled conterminously to his first day off, and work was performed or credited on such first day off, double (2) time computed separately from the work week for all hours worked on this day(s), with a minimum credit of eight (8) hours.
- 39.2.3 If work is performed or credited on consecutive days off in different work weeks, (i.e. 4 consecutive days off), then any first day worked shall be paid at time and one half (11/2) and any second, third or fourth day off worked in those four (4) days shall be paid in accordance with Article 39.2.2.
- 39.2.4 Should the hours worked or credited on a day off exceed eight (8) hours, all time worked or credited in excess of eight (8) hours, [but less than twelve (12) hours] will be paid at an additional one-half (1/2) the basic rate over and above the rates contained in Article 39.2.1 and 39.2.2.
- 39.2.5 Should the hours worked or credited on a day off exceed twelve (12) hours, all time worked or credited in excess of twelve (12) will be paid at an additional one (1) times the basic rate over and above the rates contained in Article 39.2.1 and 39.2.2.

Hours worked	Art. 39.2.1	Art. 39.2.2
0 – 8	1 ½ basic	2 basic
8 – 12	2 basic	2 ½ basic
over 12	2 ½ basic	3 basic

39.3 Notice of cancellation of assigned work on a scheduled day off or on a holiday shall be given not later than 16:00 of the previous work day. If such notice is not given, the employee shall receive four (4) hours pay at the basic rate.

ARTICLE 40

Meal Periods

- 40.1 First Meal Period: To all tours of duty a first meal period of sixty (60) minutes shall be assigned beginning not earlier than the third hour of such tour and ending not later than the end of the sixth (6th) hour of such tour.
- 40.1.1 First Meal Period News: Photographer/ENG, News Reporter/Anchor, Videographer, Digital Journalist, Sports Reporter/Anchor, and Assignment Editor/Writer shall receive an inclusive first meal period of thirty (30) minutes and shall be assigned not beginning earlier than the third (3rd) hour of the tour of duty and ending not later than the end of the sixth (6th) hour of the tour of duty. The normal tour of duty for those receiving a thirty (30) minute meal break shall be eight (8) hours.
- 40.1.2 Where a first meal period is displaced outside the time defined in Article 40.1, displacement shall be calculated from the start of the originally scheduled meal period until the meal is actually received. Where a meal period has not been scheduled it shall be deemed to have been scheduled from the start of the fifth (5th) hour.
- 40.1.3 The penalty for first meal displacement shall be 0.5 times the employee's basic rate of pay for the duration of the displacement. For a displacement of one hour or less the penalty paid shall be for a minimum of one hour. For a displacement of more than one hour, the penalty paid shall be in one-half hour increments for each half-hour or part thereof.
- **Second Meal Period:** A second meal period of not less than thirty (30) minutes shall be assigned in tours of duty of ten (10) hours or more. The second meal shall be assigned so as to be completed before the end of the third hour of overtime.
- 40.2.1 Where a second meal period is displaced so as not to have been completed by the end of the third (3rd) hour of overtime, a meal displacement penalty of one-half hour at the basic rate shall be paid.

- 40.3 Subsequent Meal Periods: A subsequent meal period of not less than thirty (30) minutes will be assigned within the third (3rd) hour after the completion of a prior meal period.
- 40.3.1 Where a subsequent meal is displaced so as not to have been received three (3) hours following a previous meal, a meal displacement penalty of one-half hour at basic pay shall be paid.
- 40.4 Except where the Company provides and pays for the meal in a time-frame that overlaps the meal window period, Article 40.1, 40.2 and/or 40.3 meal displacement penalties shall be paid.
- **40.4.1** If a meal encroachment is fifteen (15) minutes or less, no penalty shall apply.
- 40.4.2 Meal displacement shall be calculated for each meal period and where displacements overlap, meal displacement allowances shall compound.
- 40.5 Unless the Company provides and pays for the meal, six dollars (\$6.00) shall be paid to compensate for the cost of the second and each subsequent meal whether such meal is received or not.
- 40.6 In the event a remote location is so situated that facilities to obtain an appropriate meal are readily available for the crew during their assigned meal period, the Company shall:
 - Allow the crew sufficient added time and supply them with adequate transportation to travel to where an appropriate meal can be obtained, or
 - b) At the Company's expense, furnish the crew with an appropriate meal.
- 40.6.1 In the event a remote location is so situated that no facilities are readily available for the crew during their assigned meal period the Company may give advance notice to an employee that he will be required to provide his first meal. Such notice must be given not later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the start time of the employee for the day in question.
- 40.7 Employees shall not be required to travel from their normal place of employment to other studios or remote locations within the area during their meal periods, or any part thereof.

Break Periods

41.1 The past practice with regard to break periods during a normal tour of duty shall continue

41.2 On a tour of duty of more than eight (8) hours an employee shall not be required to work more than three (3) hours without receiving a break period

ARTICLE 42

Overtime

42.1 Except for employees on priority call, employees shall have the right to refuse to work scheduled overtime by notifying the Company of such refusal within forty-eight (48) hours of the schedule being posted. Furthermore, the employee shall have the right to refuse any overtime scheduled or assigned thereafter. No employee, except for employees on priority call, in exercising the foregoing right of refusal will be penalized for refusing to work such overtime.

Should no employee(s) at the job site in the job classification (5.1.1) be willing to work overtime, the most junior employee(s) on site or off site within the classification may be assigned. In the case of work or an assignment of a continuing nature, the employee who has been assigned to the work may be required to extend their shift and perform the overtime.

Hours worked/credited	Payment	
0 – 8	Basic	
8 – 12	1 ½ x basic	
12 – 16	2 x basic	
over 16	2 ½ x basic	

- **42.2** When an employee works overtime in accordance with Article 42.1 such overtime hours shall be compensated as follows:
- 42.2.1 All time worked or credited in excess of eight (8) hours [but less than twelve (12) hours] in one (1) day, shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (11/2) times the hourly rate of the employee, computed separately from the work week.
- **42.2.2** Should the time worked or credited exceed twelve (12) hours, all hours worked or credited in excess of twelve (12) hours will be paid at an additional one-half (1/2) times the basic rate over and above the rates contained in Article 42.2.1.
- 42.2.3 Should the time worked or credited exceed sixteen (16) hours all hours worked or credited in excess of sixteen (16) will be paid at an additional one-half (1/2) times the basic rate over and above the rates contained in Article 42.2.1.

Article 42.3 not illustrated in recap

- 42.3 Employees involved in unscheduled overtime or unscheduled work on a day off (i.e. overtime, or work on a day off, which is scheduled and/or worked without notice being given to the employee by 16:00 on the employee's last working day prior to the day involved) will be paid at one-half (1/2) the basic rate, in addition to any other payments received under this agreement for all such time scheduled and/or worked.
- 42.3.1 ENG Camera, News/Sports Announcers, and News/Sports Reporters will not be paid an additional penalty for the first hour of unscheduled overtime if such overtime is a direct result of an unexpected event (events of major political, economic, or social importance of which the Company had not or could not be expected to have prior knowledge).
- **42.4** All overtime must be authorized by a department supervisor in order to qualify for compensation.

Call-Back

- 43.1 An employee called back to work shall be paid at the time and one-half (11/2) rate with a minimum credit of four (4) hours including a thirty (30) minute travelling period. If call-back is extended over four (4) hours the additional hours will be paid at the double (2) time rate. Call-back shall be computed separately from the work week. The above payment shall not be made where News Reporter/Anchors or Sports Reporter/Anchors are required to correct or recut their stories because of a factual inaccuracy of which the reporter should have been aware.
- 43.2 Call-back is defined as those hours credited to an employee who, having worked and/or been credited with at least the minimum tour of duty is called back to perform further work on the day in question.
- 43.3 An employee on call-back shall not be required to work more than three and one-half (31/2) hours without a meal period. After this meal period, which is deemed to be a second or subsequent meal, Articles 40 and 41 shall apply.
- 43.4 Where News Camera are provided with a permanently assigned Company news vehicle they shall be on call and shall respond to calls on a rotating priority basis. Where an employee is absent on vacation or on an approved leave of absence, the Company may require the vehicle to be returned for the period of such a leave. Company vehicles will not be taken out of the province except on Company approved business.
- 43.5 News Camera on priority call who is called in to work on a scheduled day off shall be paid in accordance with Article 39 and Article 42.3 shall not apply.

43.6 The News Camera on priority call shall be required to respond to a call at any time during their on-call period. Other News Camera may respond to a phone call or text, however, it is agreed such response shall be on a voluntary basis.

ARTICLE 44

Turn-Around Period

- 44.1 A turn-around period is the period of at least twelve (12) hours between the end of one tour of duty and the commencement of the next tour of duty.
- 44.2 All time scheduled or worked, including any meal period, within twelve (12) hours of the actual end of the previous tour of duty shall be compensated by one of the following premiums in addition to the basic rate of pay.
- **44.2.1** Where the period of time off duty is eight (8) or more hours but less than twelve (12) hours, one-half (1/2) times basic.
- **44.2.2** Where the period of time off duty is four (4) or more hours but less than eight (8) hours, one (1) times basic.
- **44.2.3** Where the period of time off is less than four (4) hours, one and one-half (11/2) times basic.

Hours Between Stop and start Time	Compensation
0 – 4	1 ½ times basic rate
4 – 8	1 times basic rate
8 – 12	½ times basic rate

Recap

- 44.3 No payment shall be made for the following encroachments:
- **44.3.1** On a shift where an employee is released from duty for the entire tour of duty to attend negotiation or grievance meetings with Management.
- **44.3.2** On a swing in shift, in a regular rotating shift pattern which has been approved by the Union, and occurs in conjunction with an employee's scheduled days off.

Night Differential

45.1 When an employee works between 01:00 hours (1:00 a.m.) and 06:00 (6:00 a.m.) all hours shall be additionally compensated for at varying rates according to the following scale:

Between the hours of: Rate per hour: 01:00 - 03:00 \$2.50

03:00 - 06:00 \$4.50

Night differential shall not be deemed overtime or part of basic pay.

ARTICLE 46

Expenses and Automobiles

- **46.1** The Company agrees to reimburse each employee for all authorized and/or approved expenses when travel is authorized by the Company.
- 46.2 It is expressly agreed that the use of an employee's vehicle in executing the business of the Company is not compulsory, and he may at his discretion decline to do so. If any employee declines to use his vehicle in executing the business of the Company, the Company shall have the right to request another qualified employee in the bargaining unit to do so.
- 46.2.1 The Company agrees to supply employees with transportation or a vehicle when said employee performs his daily job function away from the Company premises and does not wish to use his own vehicle. The Company also agrees to maintain vehicles it owns or leases at a roadworthy level.
- 46.2.2 If an employee is authorized to use the employee's own automobile for transportation in connection with work related duties, the employee shall be compensated at a rate of forty eight cents (\$0.48) per kilometre, with a minimum of three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) for each round trip or one-way trip to a location that would complete the employee's tour of duty.
- 46.2.3 When an employee on Company business is involved in an accident resulting in damage to his car, and the amount of damage cannot be recovered from any other person or persons, the Company agrees to reimburse the employee to a maximum of \$250.00, such amount being regarded as the deductible amount on the employee's car insurance policy. Furthermore, the Company will not be required to pay any deductible amount if the accident was a result of proved negligence on the employee's part.
- **46.2.4** The Company shall notify on commencement of employment that the said employee may be required to occasionally use his vehicle on Company business. The

Company must advise each employee that personal insurance rates may increase and agrees to reimburse him for any additional premiums charged above the "pleasure only" rates.

46.3 An employee shall be reimbursed for all parking expenses while on Company business

ARTICLE 47

Travel Conditions

- 47.1 When an employee travels out-of-town (as defined in Article 48) on approved or authorized Company business, during a tour of duty, the travel time shall be considered as part of the tour of duty.
- 47.2 When an employee's travel time on an out-of-town assignment extends beyond his/her tour of duty, such time shall be compensated as hours of work.
- 47.3 For pay purposes, employees engaged only in travelling shall be credited with all time consumed when travelling on an assignment of the Company. Such time will be computed.
- 47.3.1 When the employee departs from his home for travel by common carrier, from one hour before departure of the common carrier.
- 47.3.2 From the assigned hour of departure from his/her home when an employee travels by automobile direct to the assignment.
- 47.3.3 From the time he/she leaves his/her normal place of employment when the employee reports there before proceeding to travel.
- **47.3.4** From the assigned hour of departure from his/her lodging when an employee is using overnight accommodation.
- 47.3.5 When travel is on a common carrier between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 8:00 a.m., local time, and suitable sleeping facilities are available, no credit shall be allowed. For the purpose of this section, an economy class seat on a regularly scheduled commercial airline is construed to be suitable sleeping facilities. When travel is designated by the Company on conveyances which do not have sleeping facilities, full time credit shall be allowed.
- 47.3.6 When travel is by charter transportation, from the Calgary International Airport, Edmonton International Airport, or the Lethbridge airport, from the assigned report time
- 47.4 Time credited for the return journey under the above conditions will be computed in the same manner.

- 47.5 The Company agrees to maintain adequate liability insurance on all vehicles owned and rented by the Company which it requests any employee to drive.
- 47.6 When an employee is required to work at a studio or remote location other than his/her normal place of employment, he/she shall be credited with all time consumed in transit between such normal place of employment and any other studio or remote location and return.
- 47.7 When an employee is assigned to an out-of-town location where he/she is required to remain overnight, the Company will provide, if available, reasonable single room accommodation with a shower and/or bath.

Location Definition and Expenses

- **48.1** For the purpose of this Agreement the following definition of "location" shall apply:
- **48.1.1** "Local" location is considered to be any point within a fifty kilometre radius of the Company's offices.
- 48.1.2 "Out-of-town" location shall be any point beyond the limits defined as "Local" location.
- 48.2 Employees on "Local" photographic assignments shall receive an expense allowance to cover the cost of first (1st) meals in the amount of six dollars (\$6.00) for each such meal. This expense allowance shall only be paid if no other meal penalties apply.
- 48.3 Employees who are assigned to an out-of-town location and are provided overnight accommodation shall receive per diem to cover the cost of meals and personal expenses for each completed twenty-four hour period in the amount of \$62.

In addition:

- a) Hotels payment will be for actual expenses
- b) Air Travel economy air fare
- Ground Transportation airport limousine or bus shall be used where available, otherwise actual taxi expenses will be paid.

Where travel and overnight accommodation is required in the United States the per diem rate shall be paid in United States dollars at the then current rate of exchange. Where travel is required outside Canada it shall be the employee's option to accept per diem or submit actual expenses.

48.3.1 When an employee is assigned to an out-of-town location where the employee is not required to remain twenty-four (24) hours or more, the company shall pay the following meals compensation:

Breakfast \$12.00 Lunch \$16.00 Dinner \$22.00

This provision shall only apply when the employee is out of town on assignment during the time of the employee's normally assigned meal periods.

- **48.3.2** Breakfast compensation will only be paid where the tour of duty begins in an out-of-town location.
- 48.4 Employees on remote assignments shall be reimbursed upon presentation of proper accounts and receipts, for all reasonable expenses incurred while on Company business.
- 48.5 Where an employee requires an advance to cover travelling and location expenses, the employee shall apply for such advance as far ahead as the employee's scheduled departure time as is practical. An employee who has incurred expenses shall submit an accounting of expenditures and accompanying receipts within five (5) days of the employee's return.

ARTICLE 49

Vacations

- 49.1 Except as modified by subsequent clauses of this Article, employees shall be entitled to an annual vacation with pay or separation pay in lieu thereof, in accordance with the following table:
- **49.1.1** Employees' vacation pay will be their basic rate at the time the vacation is taken.

Service: Seniority as defined in Article 18 computed as of June 30th each year	Duration of vacation in working days	Payment
Start – 6 months	5/6 days/mo.	4%
6 – 12 months	15 days/year	6%
12 – 60 months	15 days/year	6%
60 – 180 months	20 days/year	8%
180 months & over	25 days/year	10%

- Payment: % of gross earnings since July 1st of previous year to June 30th of current year to be paid within two (2) weeks of completion of vacation credits.
- 49.1.2 Part-time employees shall be paid the appropriate % of gross earnings as per 49.1.1 from July 1st of the previous year to June 30th of the current year to be paid by July 15th.
- 49.2 Every employee shall be entitled to have all of his vacation period consecutively unless requested otherwise by the employee and approved by the Company.
- **49.3** In the event that a statutory holiday occurs during an employee's vacation, one (1) additional day for each such holiday shall be added to the end of the vacation.
- 49.4 An employee will be entitled to begin and end his vacation in conjunction with his days off, plus any additional days resulting from the activation of Article 49.3.
- 49.5 Employees shall have the right to take their vacations throughout the calendar year subject to Management approval. Where there is a conflict within a job function as listed in Article 5.1.1 Company seniority shall apply. Each employee's application shall be submitted in writing on the form prescribed by the Company prior to April 15th for the 12 month period commencing the following July 1st. Vacation schedules for the same period will be posted by May 1st.
- **49.5.1** Employees who do not submit a vacation request by March 30th of the applicable vacation period may have their vacation assigned by the Company.
- 49.5.2 An employee's vacation, once posted in accordance with Article 49.5, shall not be rescheduled except by mutual consent.
- 49.6 Upon termination of employment an employee (or his estate in the case of death), shall receive accrued vacation pay for each completed calendar month of employment since the previous June 30th, plus pay for any vacation period previously earned but not taken.
- 49.7 In special circumstances and with the leave of the Company, employees shall be allowed to waive their vacation period and allow their vacation credits to accumulate from year to year such that their maximum entitlement in any vacation year is 6 weeks.
- 49.8 In the event that an employee desires leave without pay, he shall apply in writing to the Company, stating the reason for such leave. An employee will not suffer loss of seniority, but vacation, pension and other contributory benefits tied to income will be re-calculated on a pro-rata basis.

Legal Holiday and Payment

50.1 The following shall be paid holidays:

New Year's Day
Family Day
Good Friday
Victoria Day
Canada Day
Civic holiday
Labour Day
National Truth and Reconciliation Day
Thanksgiving Day
Remembrance Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day
1 Floater

If any additional day is proclaimed as a public holiday by the Federal Government, it shall replace a day from the above list.

- 50.1.1 If any of the above days fall on a Sunday and the day following is proclaimed a holiday by Federal, Provincial or Municipal Authority, the Sunday shall be deemed to be the holiday for the purposes of this Agreement.
- 50.1.2 If a holiday falls on a scheduled work day and the employee is not required to work, he shall receive his normal pay for such day so that his basic monthly income will not he affected
- 50.1.3 If a holiday falls on a scheduled work day and the employee is required to work, he shall receive two and one-half (21/2) times his basic rate (which amount shall include his basic rate) with a minimum credit of eight (8) hours, except that all hours worked and/or credited in excess of eight (8) hours per day will be paid at an additional one-half (1/2) times the basic hourly rate, and where applicable, the hours worked and/or credited shall be subject to any or all provisions of Article 42.1, 42.2.2 and 42.3.
- 50.1.4 If the holiday falls on a scheduled day off he shall receive one (1) additional day's pay for that week unless in lieu of such pay one (1) additional day off is given which is contiguous to the holiday or to the weekend in which the holiday occurs.
- 50.1.5 If the holiday falls on a scheduled day off and an employee is required to work, he shall receive three (3) times his basic rate, with a minimum credit of eight (8) hours, except that all hours worked and/or credited in excess of eight (8) hours will be paid at an additional one-half (1/2) times the basic hourly rate; and where applicable the hours worked and/or credited shall be subject to any or all provisions of Article 42.1, 42.2.2 and 42.3.

Hours worked/credited	Article 50.1.2	Article 50.1.3	Article 50.1.5
0 – 8	8 hrs x Basic	2½ x Basic	3 x Basic
8 – 12 hrs		3 x Basic	3½ x Basic
Over 12 hrs		3½ x Basic	4 x Basic

Recap shows calculation exclusive of basic rate.

50.2 When the Company and the Union agree to move a holiday to a date different from the scheduled date, all holiday premiums and penalties will be earned on the new agreed date.

ARTICLE 51

Scheduling of Christmas and New Year's Holidays

- 51.1 Before November 1st of each year the Company will ascertain the wishes of the employees regarding the scheduling of Christmas and New Year's Holidays.
- 51.2 These Christmas and New Year's Holiday schedules shall be posted not later than the 30th of November.
- **51.3** An employee shall be scheduled off on either:
 - a) Christmas and Boxing Day

Or

b) New Year's Day

If requested by the employee and the employee shall not be scheduled past **7:00** p.m. on the eve of the holiday which he receives off. In the event of conflict between employee requests, the senior employee shall be given preference.

ARTICLE 52

Sick Leave

Calgary

52.1 An employee who is absent because of illness or accident shall receive sick leave computed on the basis of one and one quarter (1-1/4) working days credit for each month of Company seniority for a maximum credit equivalent to fifteen (15) working days within the calendar year, cumulative from year to year to a maximum credit of 130 working days, provided that the employee complies with the following requirements:

- **52.1.1** When taken ill he shall notify his Department Head at the earliest possible opportunity.
- **52.1.2** The employee shall offer proof satisfactory to the Company of his illness, if requested to do so by the Company.
- **52.2** Absence because of illness or accident shall not interrupt an employee's vacation credits or seniority earned under the Agreement.
- 52.3 In the event an employee becomes entitled to monthly indemnity under the Company's Long Term Disability Plan, he shall be entitled to apply any unused sick leave over and above such indemnity to maintain full regular income until such sick leave has been entirely used.
- 52.4 The plan guarantees a minimum benefit of 66 2/3% of insured earnings up to fifteen (15) weeks for each separate period of disability. Successive periods of absence due to the same or related causes separated by less than one (1) month of active employment may be considered as one period of disability.

Sick Leave

Lethbridge

- 52.5 An employee who is absent because of illness or accident shall receive sick leave in accordance with the current short term disability plan. Sick leave is a benefit offered for the employee's personal illness or accident (not the illness of any dependent, relative, or friend). An employee who is unable to report to work shall contact his supervisor, or any member of management, at the earliest possible opportunity.
- 52.6 The employee may be required to offer satisfactory proof to the Company of any illness if requested to do so by the Company.

Sick Leave

Edmonton

- 52.7 An employee who is absent because of illness or incapacity shall receive Short Term Disability of 66.7% of the employee's basic weekly earnings to a maximum of \$1000. Maximum benefit period is 17 weeks. In addition:
 - a) When taken ill he shall notify his Department Head at the earliest possible opportunity.
 - b) The employee shall offer proof satisfactory to the Company of his illness, if requested to do so by the Company.
- **52.7.1** The first five (5) working days of disability shall be paid at one hundred percent (100%) of salary.

- **52.7.2** Eligibility would commence following three (3) months of employment.
- 52.8 Absence because of illness or incapacity shall not interrupt an employee's vacation credits, or seniority earned or health and welfare benefits as in this Agreement.
- 52.9 Should an employee fall sick while on authorized leave of absence, sick leave will not be paid until the expiration of that leave.
- 52.10 If an employee, having received sick pay under Article 52, subsequently receives a settlement or judgement for lost wages they shall reimburse the Company for any amount received. The employee is required to reimburse the Company only for the amount received in a settlement or judgement which may not necessarily be equivalent to the sick pay received from the Company. The amount of reimbursement to the Company shall in no event exceed the amount of sick leave pay received from the Company.

Health and Welfare Plans

Effective May 1, 2018:

Calgary

- 53.1 The Company agrees to pay one hundred per cent (100%) of the cost of the Company Group Life Plan and will continue the benefits so provided. In the event that the existing is changed, replaced or amended the Company agrees that it will continue to pay one hundred per cent (100%) of the cost and provide benefits no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing this Agreement.
- 53.2 The Company agrees to pay 100% of the premiums relating to the Company's dental and optical plan.
- 53.3 There shall be a joint Company/Union benefits committee comprised of two (2) representatives of each party. The committee shall meet at least once annually or more often if requested by either party, to review the benefit plan and consider changes or improvements.
- 53.4 Any changes to the benefits plan during the term of this agreement must be agreed to by a majority of the committee and subject to the ratification of both parties to this collective agreement.
- 53.5 The cost incurred by the Company in the administration of the benefits and short-term disability plan shall not be charged against the level of contributions by the Company to the plan and shall be an extra cost to be borne by the Company.

Lethbridge

53.6 The Company agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premiums as of the date of signing of this Agreement for business travel insurance, Alberta Health Care, basic group life, dependant life, AD&D, LTD medical, dental and optical plans. The Company agrees to provide the aforementioned benefits at a level that is no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing.

The employees shall pay any premiums for voluntary additional coverage.

Health and Welfare Plans

Calgary/Lethbridge

Effective May 1, 2019:

- 53.1 The Company agrees to pay ninety five percent 95% of the cost of the Company Group Life Plan and will continue the benefits so provided. In the event that the existing plan is changed, replaced or amended the Company agrees that it will continue to pay ninety five per cent 95% of the cost and provide benefits no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing this Agreement.
- 53.2 The Company agrees to pay ninety five percent 95% of the premiums as of the date of signing of this Agreement for business travel insurance, Alberta Health Care, basic group life, dependant life, AD&D, LTD, major medical health, dental and optical plans. The Company agrees to provide the aforementioned benefits at a level that is no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing.

The employees shall pay any premiums for voluntary additional coverage.

Effective May 1, 2020:

- 53.1 The Company agrees to pay ninety percent 90% of the cost of the Company Group Life Plan and will continue the benefits so provided. In the event that the existing is changed, replaced or amended the Company agrees that it will continue to pay ninety per cent 90% of the cost and provide benefits no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing this Agreement.
- 53.2 The Company agrees to pay ninety percent 90% of the premiums as of the date of signing of this Agreement for business travel insurance, Alberta Health Care, basic group life, dependant life, AD&D, LTD, major medical health, dental and optical plans. The Company agrees to provide the aforementioned benefits at a level that is no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing.

The employees shall pay any premiums for voluntary additional coverage.

Effective May 1, 2021:

- 53.1 The Company agrees to pay eighty-five percent 85% of the cost of the Company Group Life Plan and will continue the benefits so provided. In the existing is changed, replaced or amended the Company agrees that it will continue to pay eighty-five per cent 85% of the cost and provide benefits no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing this Agreement.
- 53.2 The Company agrees to pay eighty-five percent 85% of the premiums as of the date of signing of this Agreement for business travel insurance, Alberta Health Care, basic group life, dependant life, AD&D, LTD, major medical health, dental and optical plans. The Company agrees to provide the aforementioned benefits at a level that is no less favourable than those provided at the date of signing.

The employees shall pay any premiums for voluntary additional coverage.

- 53.3 There shall be a joint Company/Union benefits committee comprised of three (3) representatives of each party. The committee shall meet at least once annually or more often if requested by either party, to review the benefit plan and consider changes or improvements.
- 53.4 Any changes to the benefits plan during the term of this agreement must be agreed to by a majority of the committee and subject to the ratification of both parties to this collective agreement.
- 53.5 The cost incurred by the Company in the administration of the benefits and short-term disability plan shall not be charged against the level of contributions by the Company to the plan and shall be an extra cost to be borne by the Company.
- 53.6 A brochure outlining the insurance plan in this Article will be made available to all eligible employees.

Edmonton

Effective May 1, 2018:

- 53.7 The Company will pay fifty percent (50%) of all premiums during the first (1) year of full time Employee's employment and eighty percent (80%) of all premiums thereafter in respect to the Insurance Benefits listed in this clause. The employee will pay the balance of all such premiums and costs.
- 53.8 The Company will pay fifty-five percent (55%) of all premiums of a part-time employee when that employee works twenty (20) or more hours per week. Participation in these benefits is optional.

For Employees

Life Insurance

Accidental Death & Dismemberment

Short Term Disability

Long Term Disability Insurance

For Employees and Dependents

Major Medical Health Insurance (inclusive of Vision Care benefits)

Alberta Health Care

Dental Care Insurance

Effective May 1, 2021:

53.9 The Company will pay fifty percent (50%) of all premiums during the first (1) year of full time Employee's employment and eighty-five percent (85%) of all premiums thereafter in respect to the Insurance Benefits listed below. The employee will pay the balance of all such premiums and costs.

For Employees and Dependents

Major Medical Health Insurance (inclusive of Vision Care benefits)

Alberta Health Care

Dental Care Insurance

- 53.10 The Company will pay sixty percent (60%) of all premiums of a part-time employee when that employee works twenty (20) or more hours per week. Participation in these benefits is optional.
- 53.11 The benefits referred to in Article 53.8 and 53.9 that are currently in effect will not be altered during the term of this Agreement without the Union ratifying this change prior to it becoming operative.
- 53.12 The Company is entitled to alter the insurance carrier as determined from time to time by the Company so long as the benefits and conditions are not affected thereby.
- **53.12** A brochure outlining the insurance plan in Article 53.8 will be made available to all eligible employees.
- 53.13 The actual benefit coverage will be governed by the insurance contracts in place.
- 53.14 All employees as defined in 4.1, are eligible to join the Pension Plan and monthly contributions shall be made by both the employee and the Company. It is agreed that two (2) members of the Union and two (2) representatives of the Company shall convene and review this Agreement's terms and conditions. The Pension Plan shall be annexed hereto as Letter of Understanding Pension Plan Synopsis CITV.

Health and Welfare

ARTICLE 54

Pension

- 54.1 The Company Pension plan in existence for each station at the signing of this Collective Agreement shall be kept in force for the term of this Agreement. Each employee enrolled in the aforementioned Pension Plan shall receive annually an audited statement of his status in the plan
- 54.2 The parties hereto shall meet during the term of this Agreement to discuss changes and/or improved benefits in the Pension Plan.

ARTICLE 55

Compassionate Leave

- 55.1 When an employee is required to be absent due to death in his immediate family, i.e. legal guardian, husband, wife, father, mother, brother, sister, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, common law spouse, grandparents, he will be granted compassionate leave of absence with pay up to three (3) days, for the purpose of arranging/ attending the funeral.
- 55.1.1 When travelling time is required, up to two (2) additional days with pay shall be granted.
- 55.2 The Company at its discretion will continue the past practice of granting time off to employees for medical, dental and eye appointments where reasonable notice is given. Time off to attend such appointments shall not automatically extend the employee's tour of duty that day nor shall overtime or penalty provisions apply during that tour of duty until the employee has actually worked the equivalent of his regular tour of duty.
- 55.3 The employer will consider requests for specified leave for emergencies, e.g. birth of a child, critical illness in the immediate family, however, payment for such leave will be at the sole discretion of the employer. Such leave, where granted, shall not be classified as part of an employee's annual vacation or sick leave.

ARTICLE 56

Jury Duty

56.1 Employees called to serve on juries or to obey a Crown Subpoena shall receive their regular salaries during such periods.

Education, Seminars, Etc.

57.1 When an employee is advised by the Company to attend seminars, educational courses, etc., pertaining to the television industry, he shall receive eight (8) hours base pay for a whole tour or more, or his basic hourly rate for hours involving less than a full tour. It is agreed that Article 39, Article 40.4, Article 42, and Article 44 shall be waived to allow an employee to attend classes of instruction, seminars, etc. pertaining to the television industry. The Company shall, after prior approval, reimburse an employee for fees paid by the employee for any courses taken on his own time pertaining to the television industry. It is agreed that the Union can terminate this article upon ten (10) days notice to the Company in the event that the Union feels the intent of this article is being misconstrued. The Company shall have the right to terminate this article upon ten (10) days notice to the Union.

ARTICI F 58

Classification Changes

- 58.1 The parties agree to maintain a Classification Committee, which shall meet jointly, as required, to discuss job descriptions and classification matters. The Committee shall be comprised of three (3) Union members and three (3) Company members.
- 58.2 Where a new job classification is created or deleted either party may refer the matter to the Classification Committee for discussion and resolution of any differences that may arise with respect to the job title and/or rate of pay.
- 58.3 Should the Committee fail to resolve the differences between the parties, such issues that remain unresolved may be referred by either Party to binding arbitration. The cost of the arbitrator shall be paid by the Union. The selection of the arbitrator will be by mutual consent.

ARTICLE 59

Maternity & Parental Leave

- 59.1 An employee, who is not initially taking leave for child care, shall be granted three (3) consecutive days off work with full regular salary starting immediately after the birth of their child, or immediately after their spouse is released from the hospital, or when the employee takes custody of the child.
- 59.2 Every employee who has completed six (6) months of continuous service with the Company is entitled to and shall be granted:
 - Maternity Leave Upon receipt of a certificate of a qualified medical practitioner certifying that they are pregnant, a leave of absence from employment of up to

- seventeen (17) weeks, which leave may commence not earlier than eleven (11) weeks prior to the estimated date of delivery and end not later than seventeen (17) weeks following the actual date of delivery.
- b) Parental Leave A leave of absence from employment of up to thirty-seven (37) weeks to care for a new-born child of the employee or a child who is in the care of the employee for the purpose of adoption.
- 59.3 If an employee is taking maternity leave along with parental leave, the parental leave must be taken after the maternity leave ends. The aggregate amount of leave that may be taken by one (1) or two (2) employees (co-parents) combining maternity and parental leave shall not exceed fifty-two weeks.
- **59.4** Every employee who takes a leave of absence under Article 59.2 shall:
 - a) Give at least four (4) weeks' notice in writing to the Company of the start date of their leave unless there is a valid reason why such notice cannot be given, and
 - b) Give at least four (4) weeks' notice in writing to the Company of the length of the leave or any change in the length of the leave, unless there is a valid reason why such notice cannot be given.
- 59.5 Employees on approved maternity or parental leave will be eligible for a supplemental benefit allowance as follows:
 - a) Sixty-five per cent (65%) of their base pay for the first two (2) weeks of maternity/parental leave, coinciding with Employment Insurance (EI) waiting period after the employee submits proof that they have applied and qualified for EI benefits. The normal deductions for the two (2) weeks shall be deducted at source, and:
 - Employment Insurance (EI) benefits will be topped up to sixty-five per cent (65%) of their base pay for a period of twelve (12) weeks.
- 59.6 Employees receiving such benefits must commit to return to work for at least six (6) months following the end of their maternity and/or parental leave. Should the employee fail to return to work for the required six (6) months, the amount received under the supplementary maternity/parental leave plan shall be repaid. The amount owed may be collected from any outstanding remuneration.
- 59.7 The Company shall not require an employee to take a leave of absence from employment because the employee is pregnant, unless the employee is unable to perform an essential function of her job and no appropriate job is available for that employee. The burden of proving that a pregnant employee is unable to perform an essential function of her job rests with the employer.
- 59.8 A pregnant employee who is unable to perform an essential function of their job and for whom no appropriate alternative job is available may be required to take a leave

- of absence from employment only for such time as they are unable to perform the essential function
- 59.9 The pension, health and disability benefits and the seniority of any employee who takes or is required to take a leave of absence under Article 59.2 shall accumulate during the entire period.
- 59.10 During the maternity or adoptive leave as described in Article 59.2 the Company shall continue to pay 100% of the cost of the Medical Plans outlined in Article 53.
- 59.11 Any other issue respecting maternity leave shall be dealt with accordance with the provisions of the Canada Labour Code III.

Duration of Agreement

- 60.1 This Agreement shall be effective on May 1, 2022 and shall remain in force until April 30, 2025 and from year to year thereafter, unless either party notifies the other by registered mail, not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days and not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of expiry, or anniversary of such date, of their intent to modify this Agreement. In the event such notice is given, this Agreement shall continue in full force until a new Agreement is concluded or until a lawful strike or lockout is executed pursuant to the provisions of the Canada Labour Code, whichever first occurs.
- 60.2 If such notice of desire to modify this Agreement is given as specified above, (Article 60.1), a meeting shall be held within twenty (20) days for the purpose of negotiations and further meetings shall be held as frequently as possible until settlement is reached or until either party makes application for conciliation. If the resultant negotiations extend beyond the expiry date of this Agreement all provisions of the new Agreement shall be retro- active to such expiry date.
- 60.3 The parties to this Agreement declare that it contains responsibilities and obligations for each such party and that in signing this Agreement, it binds those parties during the Agreement to do everything they are required to do by the Agreement and to refrain from doing anything they are not permitted to do by the Agreement. The parties further understand and declare that in case any provisions of this Agreement are now or hereafter inconsistent with any statute of Canada or any Order-in-Council or regulations passed there under, such provisions shall be to that extent deemed null and void or shall be applied in such manner as will conform with law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED BY THEIR DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ON THIS 31st DAY OF MAY 2022.

UNION:	COMPANY:	
Andrea MacBride	Mike Couto	
Liz Marzari	Alexandra Henderson	
Signed on May 31, 2022		
Company signatories:		
Mike Couto: Alexandra Henderson:	Head Labour Relations, Corus Entertainment Inc. Vice President News and Local Stations, Corus Entertainment In	
Union Signatories:		
Andrea MacBride: Liz Marzari:	National Representative, Unifor National Representative. Unifor	

It is agreed that both parties recognize that when producing on-air local programming, Guest Hosts may be required for their expertise on a particular subject matter. Guest Hosts will not be engaged for the production of News and Current Affairs programming.

The parties agree that the Company may use the services of non-bargaining unit personnel, who will have access to Company equipment and facilities, for specific work projects of a fixed duration. It is agreed that full-time bargaining unit personnel will not directly or indirectly be displaced as a result of implementation on this letter. Such work projects shall include independent productions, commercial ventures and other revenue generating projects which might otherwise not be obtainable by the Company. The intent is to allow the Company to be competitive in these areas, and is not intended in any way to affect the security of members covered by the collective agreement. In all such endeavours the Company shall attempt to make maximum use of bargaining unit members.

The Company agrees to pay dues to the Union for any non-bargaining unit personnel used under the terms of this letter, who perform work that would fall within a job classification contained in the agreement. Dues shall be calculated at the current rate applied to bargaining unit employees, based on top-of-scale rate for the job classification.

The Company will inform the Union of any project or production that is being contemplated under this letter prior to any agreement being signed. Further, it is understood and agreed that this article may be cancelled by either party with 30 days notice. For any project where a signed agreement exists, and the Union was notified in advance, such projects will be allowed to continue to completion for a maximum period of 12 months.

ANCHOR/REPORTERS

- The Parties recognize that certain employees in the Anchor/Reporter job classification
 may be featured in promotional material of the Company. This letter of Agreement
 applies to such employees, termed "Anchor/ Reporters" in this letter.
- All terms and conditions of the Collective Agreement continue to apply to Anchor/Reporters.
- Anchor/Reporters may negotiate individual agreements with the Company providing that any such terms do not alter, amend, or contradict any terms of the Collective Agreement, except as follows:
 - a) The Anchor/Reporter's salary must be 10% above top of scale Group 14.
 - b) Any non-competitive or restrictive covenant shall not exceed six months after the end of any such agreement.
 - c) The employee must give the Company a minimum of three months notice of their intention to leave the Company.
 - d) The Company will provide the employee with a minimum of three months notice of their intention to remove the employee from the Anchor/Reporter position.
 - e) If the Anchor/reporter ceases to be an Anchor/reporter, the employee shall have the option to:
 - To receive the lump sum severance payments outlined in their individual Anchor contracts, if applicable, and forfeit all rights and privileges under the Collective Agreement.
 - ii. Exercise all rights and privileges under the Collective Agreement.
- Any individual agreements under paragraph 3 will survive the end of one collective agreement and the commencement of the replacement collective agreement.
- 5. The individual Anchor/Reporter contract shall be supplied to the UNIFOR National Representative in Vancouver. Upon receipt, UNIFOR will have two (2) business days to object to any terms of the agreement. The contents of these agreements shall be deemed to be strictly confidential and may not be disclosed by the Union.

The company undertakes that during the term of this Collective Agreement, it will not establish a production facility remote from Calgary Television Centre

RE: TRANSFER OF WORK

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 26, where the Company transfers or assigns bargaining unit work to a Global facility, or to any **Corus Entertainment** facility and where this results in the direct or indirect displacement of bargaining unit employees, said employees shall retain bumping rights in accordance with Article 23. In addition to the foregoing the following provisions shall apoly:

Where there is mutual agreement between the Company and the employee, option (a) or (b) may be exercised:

- a) Where the Company offers alternative employment, the employee may accept a transfer to another job classification and shall receive appropriate and adequate training. It is agreed that no other bargaining unit persons will be displaced as a result of exercising this option.
- b) The Company may offer the opportunity to relocate to a related Company. Where this option is exercised full severance and reasonable relocation expenses shall be paid.

Where mutual agreement with respect to options (a) or (b) cannot be achieved, the employee affected shall receive the following severance package:

- 1) 3 months notice and 3 month's pay in lieu of notice
- A severance payment of 4 weeks per year of service and pro-rated for partial year of service to a maximum of 78 weeks.
- A retraining or equivalent benefit of \$5000 for employees with 1 to 24 years of service and \$7500 for employees with service of 25 years or more.

The above severance will be offered to those employees affected with first right of refusal to the department affected on a seniority basis and subsequently on a seniority basis throughout the remainder of the bargaining unit. Employees choosing to accept the severance package must notify the Company within two weeks.

In the event that those employees who are directly or indirectly affected wish to retain their employment, the Company agrees to offer the package to any department, on a seniority basis, that the affected employee believes represents a reasonable opportunity for successful retraining. Vacancies created by this process shall be filled, on a seniority basis, by those wishing to retain their employment and they shall be provided reasonable and adequate training. The individual shall have 3 months to demonstrate proficiency to an acceptable level. The training period and the demonstration of proficiency shall occur prior to but not exceed the 3 months notice period as described in (1) above. If additional training time is required the employee may utilize additional time drawn from the 3 month payment in lieu of notice period.

Any employee that volunteers to take a severance package in order for someone else to retain their employment shall remain at work during the trainee's training period and shall only receive the package if the trainee successfully completes the training period.

If no other employees choose to accept the severance package or if the individual does not achieve proficiency they must accept the above severance package.

It is understood employees who accept the above package shall relinquish all re-engagement rights and re-call rights and shall be considered terminated.

This letter of understanding continues during the term of this collective agreement, including any extended term under article 60.l.

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #6 PENSION PLAN SYNOPSIS CITY

Employees of CITV and CanWest Studios may join the CW Shareholdings Inc. Retirement Plan for former Allarcom employees after completion of three (3) months service. The plan is a money purchase plan to which the employee contributes **four and one quarter percent** (4.25%) of earnings and the Company contributes **four and one quarter percent** (4.25%) of earnings for the duration of this Agreement.

Each year interest is credited to both the employee contributions and Company contributions. The rate credited is determined by the investment earnings of the pension fund and the Company contributions forfeited by terminating members.

The normal retirement age is 65. However, employees are allowed to retire early within the ten year period to normal retirement age. The amount of pension at retirement depends on the following factors:

- Age at retirement;
- · The amount of employee and Company contributions accumulated with interest;
- · The annuity rates available at retirement, and;
- The form of pension (i.e. single life annuity with a guaranteed period or a joint-survivor annuity with continuation to spouse.)

The termination and pre-retirement death benefits are determined by the amount of the employee contributions accumulated with interest and the vested portion of Company contributions accumulated with interest

Digital Journalist

The broadcast news industry is facing the greatest challenge in its history. Viewers are rapidly changing the way they consume news and information content and we need to evolve to meet that demand. Online platforms require content 24/7 and we need to drive our news and information to these platforms with Digital Journalists leading the charge.

The primary intent of the Digital Journalist role is to transition our existing employees to become multi-skilled to support the changes within our industry.

To be considered for the Digital Journalist position, the employee must demonstrate proficiency in 2 or more core functions i.e. reporting, shooting, editing, directing, producing, plus the regular posting of material directly to online, including but not limited to social media, as part of their regular practice.

The Digital Journalist role will be posted as per normal posting practices. Individuals obtaining this position will be promoted to the Digital Journalist group.

The Company also commits over the life of this agreement that each news room employee who expresses an interest will be provided with reasonable training with the basic digital skills required for this role.

Training and Education

The parties agree that learning and professional development are fundamental to the growth and sustainability of the Company's operations and the attainment by employees of their work potential. It is acknowledged that it is the responsibility of the Company to ensure that there is opportunity and support for the development of skills needed by employees to perform their jobs. It is further acknowledged that it is the responsibility of employees to apply themselves to training opportunities and to apply their skills to present and changing work requirements.

Therefore the Company commits to provide reasonable training when; it is a job requirement, in order to encourage employees to develop their skills and improve their job performance, and when the following occurs:

- a) During the implementation of new operating systems / software upgrades;
- b) Orientation to a new position;
- c) Career development in line with business requirements;
- d) Skill development in line with business requirements;
- e) Introduction of new equipment

With respect to employee career and skills development, the Company will assess and prioritize training opportunities annually for interested employees based on the needs of the business. Employees will be evaluated on;

- a) A demonstrated willingness to learn and apply new skills to their job
- b) Workplace performance

Company seniority will be considered when prioritizing individuals for training opportunities. If two or more individuals are equal on the above items Company seniority will apply.

The Company reserves the right to determine the number of training opportunities available each fiscal year. An employee's request for training will not be unreasonably withheld; however, requests will be subject to operational requirements.

Additional Severance

The parties agree that in the event of layoffs in the core news functions, i.e. reporting, shooting, editing, directing, producing, where the work has been reassigned to Digital Journalists, affected employees will be eligible for the additional severance detailed in this letter. To qualify for this additional severance, an employee must have been accepted into the required training but has not secured a Digital Journalist Position. Acceptance into training will be based on the criteria as outlined in Letter of Agreement - Training and Education

The Company agrees that such employees will be eligible to receive additional severance when they have forfeited their rights to bumping, seniority, re-engagement, recall and accepted layoff, as follows:

One (1) week of severance pay for each year of service to a maximum of fourteen (14) weeks.

This one-time lump sum severance as outlined above will be paid in addition to the existing severance provisions in Article 23.

Employees Grandfathered in Previous Group 9

At the renewal of this agreement the parties agree that the employees previously in Group 9 would remain in their previous wage grids and would continue to progress until:

- They are promoted to a new job classification, or otherwise receive a reclassification, in which case they will move to the new wage grid and progress in accordance with the terms of the agreement. or
- They have reached the top of scale of their grandfathered wage grid, at which time they will only receive the negotiated increase on the anniversary of the collective agreement.

Therefore the parties agree that the following employees shall be maintained on their grandfathered wage grid: Anthony Fiorini, David Polini.

Defined Contribution Pension Plan for New Hires

Moving forward all employees hired after ratification of the (2018-2021) agreement within the Global Calgary and Global Lethbridge locations will be admitted to the Defined Contribution Retirement Plan for Bargaining Unit Employees plan.

Generally, the Plan will embody the following features:

- upon eligibility of their respective Plan, employees must join the Defined Contribution Retirement Plan.
- b) The contribution of the Company and of the employee will each be four and one quarter percent (4.25%) of the employee's basic salary, so that the total contributions are eight and a half (8.5%).
- c) The Plan will not be integrated with the Canada Pension Plan. It will be stacked.
- d) In addition to required employee contributions, he/she may contribute a lump sum deposit on a voluntary basis by payroll deduction subject to the tax deduction limits. No employer contributions will be made in respect of voluntary contributions.
- Employees enrolled in the DC Retirement Plan shall receive an annual statement of their status in the Plan.
- f) The Company retains the sole right to determine the term and conditions and administration in all other matters with respect to the Plan.

Global Calgary and Global Lethbridge Retiree Benefits

Effective ratification of the (2018-2022) collective agreement, all employees of the Global Calgary and Global Lethbridge locations who are under the age of fifty (50) will no longer be eligible to participate in the Retiree Benefit program upon their retirement.

All employees who have attained fifty (50) of age or greater as of the date of ratification, will be eligible to participate in the Retiree Benefit program, contingent on meeting eligibility criteria as set out in the plan.

Lethbridge On-Call

Global Lethbridge News and News-related employees may be assigned to on-call duty during the December holiday season or other statutory holiday periods as designated by the Company. Where so assigned, they shall be compensated at the rate of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour or part thereof for each hour designated as on-call duty. The minimum standby payment under this provision shall be twelve dollars (\$12.00). On general holidays employees shall receive the stand-by pay at the rate of one and one-half (1.5x) times the stand-by rate.

No additional premiums, upgrades, or penalties, ie. turnaround will be triggered as the result of an on call shift unless they are engaged to active duty.

Time actually worked will be paid in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the Collective Agreement.

Diversity within Hiring and Promotions

Both the Company and the Union recognize and support a workplace that is as diverse as the communities it serves and where people have the full opportunity to show their unique value and develop their potential.

It is understood by both parties that in an effort to support a diverse workplace, the Company may include a diversity component within the job qualifications of Article 20.1 in order to support our efforts in building and maintaining a diverse workforce.

The union will be consulted prior to such job postings and the Company's utilization of this Memorandum.

APPENDIX A - PERSONAL HARASSMENT

- Both parties confirm that they have zero tolerance for discrimination and harassment in the workplace related to any ground under the Canadian Human Rights Act.
- In all complaints involving a claim of harassment or discrimination pursuant to the Canadian Human Rights Act brought by one or more members of the bargaining unit against another member or members of the bargaining unit, the following process will occur:
 - a) The union agrees that the employer can conduct its own investigation; such investigation will include an interview with the alleged harasser(s) during which he or she or they are advised of the gist of the complaint;
 - Following the conclusion of that investigation, Global will decide what the appropriate discipline should be, if any:
 - c) When the complaint is union initiated or involves allegations against a bargaining unit member who the union has advised has sought union representation, Global will advise a representative of Unifor of a summary of its findings, its conclusion and the reason for that conclusion. Otherwise, the union will only be advised if discipline is to be imposed.
 - d) If Global decides that discipline should be imposed then the advice per (c), above, will be given prior to the imposition of that discipline;
 - e) Discipline will not be imposed until at least 24 hours after the union has been given the advice under (d). The union may request an extension of this period, which request will not be unreasonably denied, to determine its representation obligations and to provide representation to the disciplined employee(s) at the discipline meeting. This 24 hour or longer period will extend the 10 day working days in Article 25.1

